
Town Council Agenda 1  January 2, 2024 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA  

COMMUNITY CULTURAL CENTER AUDITORIUM / MICROSOFT “TEAMS”  

50 Chapman Place  

EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT  

January 2, 2024 

  
=================================================================== 

This Town Council meeting is accessible through “Microsoft Teams” 929-235-8441 

Conference ID: 884 329 15# or Click here to join the meeting  

 

 
Pledge of Allegiance 7:30 p.m. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA 
 
3. RECOGNITIONS AND AWARDS 
 
4. OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON AGENDA 
ITEMS 

A.  Other Elected Officials 
B.  Other Residents 
C.  Mayor 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A.  December 12, 2023 Executive Session 
B. December 12, 2023 Regular Meeting 
C. December 19, 2023 Special Meeting  

 
6. COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS   
 A. Updates from Development Department  
  1. Kautilya East Hartford Hotel Project, 363 Roberts Street  
  2. Hoffman Auto Development Project, 700 Connecticut Boulevard 
 B. Resignations from Boards and Commissions 
          
7. OLD BUSINESS 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS 
 A. Grant Applications: 
  1. Hartford Foundation for Public Giving Summer Enrichment 2024  
  2. Connecticut Secretary of the State’s Office Early Voting Implementation Grant 
 B. Recommendations from Real Estate Acquisition and Disposition Committee 
  1. Acquisition of Property and Recording of Deeds for East River Drive Land  
   Parcels 
  2. Acquisition of 6.9 Acres of State Land abutting Brookside Lane 
 C. FY2024-25 Budget Workshop Schedule  

D. Council Acting as Committee of the Whole on behalf of Ordinance Committee re: 
Setting of Public Hearing Date for Fund Balance Reserve Fund Ordinance 
Amendment 

 

tel:+1%20929-235-8441,,25704167#_blank
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YWNiZmRjNTQtYjRhNy00ODJiLTg5ZmQtMTNkNTVkYzlkOWMx%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2287da8af4-4bef-47df-81f6-2cd460cbb560%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22adbe2f67-5e02-469a-ae80-8d192b3a8837%22%7d


Town Council Agenda 2  January 2, 2024 

 E. Recommendations from Personnel and Pensions Subcommittee 
 1. Proposed Revision to Job Description and Pay Grade and Change in Title for 
  Position of Accounting Assistant, Finance 
 2. Proposed Revision to Job Description and Pay Grade and Change in Title  
  for Position of Payroll Coordinator 

 F. Referrals to Personnel and Pensions Subcommittee 
  1. Proposed Revision to Job Description and Pay Grade and Change in Title for 
   Position of Administrative Secretary II (Fire Department) 
  2. Proposed Revision to Job Description and Pay Grade and Change in Title for 
   Position of Administrative Secretary III (Public Works)   
  3. Proposed Revision to Job Description and Pay Grade for Position of Assistant 
   Director of Parks and Recreation  
 G. Appointments to Boards and Commissions 
 H. Refund of Taxes 
 
9.   OPPORTUNITY FOR COUNCILLORS TO DIRECT QUESTIONS TO THE  
      ADMINISTRATION 
 
10. COUNCIL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTERS  

  
11. OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO SPEAK 

A.  Other Elected Officials 
B.  Other Residents 
C.  Mayor 

 
 12. ADJOURNMENT (next meeting: January 16, 2024 at Community Cultural    
  Center) 



December 12, 2023 1 Volume 92 

Community Cultural Center Room 111 
 

December 12, 2023 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

PRESENT Vice Chair Donald Bell, Jr., Majority Leader Sebrina Wilson (via 
Teams), Minority Leader John Morrison, Councilors Angela 
Parkinson, Awet Tsegai, Harry O. Amadasun, Jr., Thomas Rup and 
Travis Simpson  

 
ABSENT  Chair Richard F. Kehoe 
 
ALSO    James Tallberg, Corporation Counsel 
PRESENT  Melissa McCaw, Chief Administrative Officer and Finance Director 
   Attorney Joe Hope, Alter Pearson 
   Attorney Megan Nielsen, Rose Kallor 
    
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Vice Chair Bell called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
MOTION By John Morrison 
  seconded by Harry Amadasun 
 

to go into Executive Session to discuss the following: 

A. The pending CHRO claim known as Felicia Gillespie v. Town of East Hartford 
Public Schools, CHRO Case No.2340192, involving former Board of Education 
employee, Felicia Gillespie. 

B. The pending assessment (tax) appeal known as HARTFORD EAST ELDERLY 
APARTMENTS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP Et Al. v. TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD 
– HHB-CV22-6072753-S, involving real property located at 886 Main Street, East 
Hartford for the Grand List year 2021 through 2025. 

C. The pending assessment (tax) appeal known as VISTA TOWER, LLC v. TOWN 
OF EAST HARTFORD – HHB-CV22-6073866-S, involving real property located 
at 36 Main Street, East Hartford for the Grand List year 2021 through 2025. 

 
Motion carried  

 
MOTION By John Morrison 
  seconded by Harry Amadasun 
  
  to go back to Regular Session. 
 

Motion carried 8/0 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION By John Morrison 
  seconded by Harry Amadasun 



December 12, 2023 2 Volume 92 

 
  to adjourn at 7:27 pm  
 

Motion carried 8/0 
   

Attest___________________________ 
Donald Bell, Jr. 

                  Town Council Vice Chair 



 
 
December 12, 2023  Volume 92 1 

EAST HARTFORD TOWN COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY CULTURAL CENTER AUDITORIUM 
 

December 12, 2023 
 

PRESENT Vice Chair Don Bell, Majority Leader Sebrina Wilson (via Teams, arrived in 
person at 7:41 pm), Minority Leader John Morrison, Councilors Angie 
Parkinson, Travis Simpson, Thomas Rup, Awet Tsegai and Harry 
Amadasun, Jr. 

 
ABSENT Chair Richard F. Kehoe 
 
ALSO  Mayor Connor S. Martin 
PRESENT Melissa McCaw, Chief Administrative Officer and Finance Director  
  Lt. Paul Neves, East Hartford Police Department 
  Kevin Munson, Fire Chief 
  Laurence Burnsed, Director of Health and Human Services  
  Eileen Buckheit, Director of Development  
  James Rovezzi, Director of Facilities, East Hartford Public Schools  
   
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Vice Chair Bell called the meeting to order at 7:35 pm. The Chair stated that this  
meeting was also available to the public through the “Teams” platform.   
 
The Chair announced the exit locations in accordance with Connecticut General 
Statutes §29-381, after which the Council joined him in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 
RECOGNITIONS AND AWARDS 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Mayor Martin  
 

 Wished all a good evening and happy and healthy holiday season. 
 The second round Leaf Pickup will conclude on Saturday, December 16th. 
 All town offices, including the East Hartford Transfer Station will be closed 

Monday, December 25, 2023 in observance of Christmas Day and Monday, 
January 1, 2024, in observance of New Year’s Day. There will be no Sunday 
hours at Raymond Library on Sundays December 24, and December 31. Curbside 
trash pickup and recycling will be delayed by one day during these weeks. 

 The East Hartford Senior Center invites residents to a French Toast Casserole 
Breakfast at 15 Milbrook Drive, East Hartford on Saturday December 16 at 9:00 
am. 

 Bridge 05796 (Route 15) over Silver Lane will be inspected on Monday December 
18, 2023 by CT Department of Transportation’s Division of Bridge Safety and 
Evaluation.  Lane closures will be implemented between 9:00 am and 3:00 pm. 



 
 
December 12, 2023  Volume 92 2 

 The Brian A. Aselton Memorial Snow Dash 5K Road Race, sponsored by the East 
Hartford Parks and Recreation Department and the East Hartford Police 
Department will be held on Sunday, January 7, 2024 at 1:30 pm. 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
November 21, 2023 Executive Session 
 
MOTION By Sebrina Wilson 
  seconded by John Morrison 
 
  to approve the minutes of the November 21, 2023 Executive Session 
 
  Motion carried 8/0 
 
November 21, 2023 Regular Meeting 
 
MOTION By Sebrina Wilson 
  seconded by John Morrison 
 
  to approve the minutes of the November 21, 2023 Regular Meeting 
 
  Motion carried 8/0 
 
November 27, 2023 Board of Education Budget Workshop 
 
MOTION By Sebrina Wilson 
  seconded by John Morrison 
 
  to approve the minutes of the November 27, 2023 Board of Education  
  Budget Workshop 
 
  Motion carried 8/0 
 
COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS 
 
Disposition of Obsolete or Broken Town-Owned Equipment by Fire Department 
 
The Vice Chair shared that the Fire Department is removing a number of tables and a 
bookshelf that are no longer of use.  The Town assessed that the items are not of value 
and will be disposed of. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Board of Education Construction Projects: Amendment of 5 Year Capital Improvement 
Plan, Appropriation of Funds, Authorization for State Grant Applications and Referral to 
the Public Building Commission 
 
East Hartford High School Media Center Roof Top Units Replacement Project 



 
 
December 12, 2023  Volume 92 3 

 
MOTION By Harry Amadasun 
  seconded by Tom Rup 
 
  to adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of East Hartford Board of Education has identified that the 
Media Center Roof Top Units replacement project at the East Hartford High 
School is a priority of the school district and qualifies for State School Construction 
reimbursement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of removal and replacement of the Media Center Roof Top 
Units including design and construction is anticipated to total $236,635 with the 
State reimbursing 76.43% of eligible costs or $180,860 leaving the School District 
to pay 23.57% of eligible costs or approximately $64,000, which includes an 
amount for unforeseen ineligible costs; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Education has reserved $64,000 for local share costs in 
the capital reserve fund. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the East Hartford Town Council does 
hereby approve the following items: 

 
1. The addition by resolution to the Town’s 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan, the 

East Hartford High School Media Center Roof Top Units Replacement Project 
in the amount of $236,635. 

 
2. The authorization of a total project cost of $236,635 for the East Hartford High 

School Media Center Roof  Top Units Replacement Project; 
 
3. The authorization of the East Hartford Board of Education to apply to the 

Commissioner of Administrative Services and to accept or reject a grant for the 
East Hartford High School Media Center Roof Top Units Replacement Project; 

 
4. That the Town’s Public Building Commission is hereby charged with the 

oversight and approval of the East Hartford High School Media Center Root 
Top Units Replacement Project; 

 
5. That the local share of $64,000 for this project will be funded through funds 

previously appropriated by the Town Council from the Board of Education 
Capital Reserve Fund; and  

 
6. That the Town of East Hartford hereby authorizes at least the preparation of 

schematic drawings and outline specifications for the East Hartford High 
School Media Center Roof Top Units Replacement Project 

 
  On call of the vote, the motion carried 8/0 
 
Pitkin Elementary School Classroom Indoor Air Quality Improvements Project 
 
MOTION By Harry Amadasun 



 
 
December 12, 2023  Volume 92 4 

  seconded by Tom Rup 
 
  to adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of East Hartford Board of Education has identified that the 
Classroom Indoor Air Quality Improvements project at the Pitkin Elementary 
School is a priority of the school district and qualifies for State School Construction 
reimbursement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of the Classroom Indoor Air Quality Improvements including 
design and construction is anticipated to total $775,000 with the State reimbursing 
76.43% of eligible costs or $592,333 leaving the School District to pay 23.57% of 
eligible costs or approximately $210,000, which includes an amount for 
unforeseen ineligible costs; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Education has reserved $210,000 for local share costs 
in the Capital Reserve Fund. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the East Hartford Town Council does 
hereby approve the following items: 
 
1. The addition by resolution to the Town’s 5-Year Capital Improvement 

Plan, the Pitkin Elementary School Classroom Indoor Air Quality 
Improvements Project in the amount of $775,000. 

 
2. The authorization of a total project cost of $775,000 for the Pitkin 

Elementary School Classroom Indoor Air Quality Improvements Project; 
 
3. The authorization of the East Hartford Board of Education to apply to the 

Commissioner of Administrative Services and to accept or reject a grant 
for the Pitkin Elementary School Classroom Indoor Air Quality 
Improvements Project; 

 
4. That the Town’s Public Building Commission is hereby charged with the 

oversight and approval of the Pitkin Elementary School Classroom 
Indoor Air Quality Improvements Project; 

 
5. That the local share of $210,000 for this project will be funded through 

funds previously appropriated by the Town Council from the Board of 
Education Capital Reserve Fund; and  

 
6. That the Town of East Hartford hereby authorizes at least the preparation 

of schematic drawings and outline specifications for the Pitkin 
Elementary School Classroom Indoor Air Quality Improvements Project 

 
  On call of the vote, the motion carried 8/0 
 
Council Acting as a Committee of the Whole: Real Estate Acquisition and Disposition 
Committee re: Dedication and conveyance of possession and control of real property 
located at 17 Leonard Dr. Rear, East Hartford to the East Hartford Board of Education 
 



 
 
December 12, 2023  Volume 92 5 

MOTION By Angie Parkinson 
  seconded by Tom Rup 
 
  to adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of East Hartford owns the real property located at 17 
Leonard Dr. Rear, East Hartford, CT (“Premises”);  
 
WHEREAS, the Premises abuts East Hartford High School and contains 8 tennis 
courts open to the public and East Hartford High School Students and a 2,640 
square foot storage shed.  The shed is presently utilized by the Town’s 
Department of Public Works and Department of Parks and Recreation;   
 
WHEREAS, the Tennis Courts are in need of maintenance and are likely to need 
periodic maintenance and upkeep in the future;  
 
WHEREAS, The East Hartford Board of Education has expressed a willingness to 
repair the courts and has inquired as to whether the Town would be willing to 
dedicate and vest the possession and control of the Premises to it; 
 
WHEREAS, The East Hartford Board of Education has reported that it will initiate 
and finance the repair of the front 4 tennis courts and continue to maintain the 
tennis courts in a state of good repair.  Further the Board of Education will make 
efforts to upgrade the tennis courts.   
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the East Hartford Town Council does 
hereby approve the following items: 

 
1. Notwithstanding the provisions of Town Ordinance Section 10-19, the Town 

Council does hereby dedicate and vest the possession and control of the 
Premises located at 17 Leonard Dr. Rear, East Hartford, CT to the Board of 
Education for the limited purposes of maintaining and improving the Premises 
and so long as the public is permitted to continue use the tennis courts located 
on the Premises within the discretion of the Board of Education and pursuant 
to any applicable Town ordinances.  

2. The Board of Education is permitted to make use of the shed located on the 
Premises.   

3. The Board of Education shall possess, maintain, and control the Premises in 
accordance with all applicable law and within the terms of the instrument 
conveying the Premises to the Town recorded at Vol 499/ Page 37 of the East 
Hartford Town Land records.  

4. This dedication may be modified or revoked by future resolution of this 
Council.   

5. That Mayor, Connor S. Martin, is hereby authorized to make, execute and 
deliver all agreements, additional and supplemental documents, and to do and 
perform such acts and to take such actions as may be necessary or required 
for the consummation of the transactions provided for and contemplated by 
this Resolution.  

 
  On call of the vote, the motion carried 8/0 
 



 
 
December 12, 2023  Volume 92 6 

 
Request for Short Term Bid Waiver from Fire Department re: Emergent Repairs to Fire 
Apparatus 
 
EJ Boughton and Sons 
 
Gowans and Knight 
 
Atlantic Detroit Diesel 
 
MOTION By Awet Tsegai 
  seconded by Travis Simpson 
  

that in accordance with Section 10-7(c) of the Town of East Hartford Code 
of Ordinances, the Town Council waive the bidding procedures through 
June 30, 2024 as required by Section 10-7(b) and allow the Fire 
Department to purchase emergent repairs to fire apparatus as necessary 
from  EJ Boughton and Sons for an amount not to exceed $40,000 in each 
occurrence, Gowans and Knight for an amount not to exceed $40,000 in 
each occurrence, and from Atlantic Detroit Diesel for an amount not to 
exceed $50,000 in each occurrence as detailed in a memo from Fire Chief 
Kevin Munson to Mayor Connor Martin dated December 7, 2023, as these 
are the only local vendors that are familiar with the Town’s Seagrave fire 
apparatus fleet, and provide 24-hour services. 

 
  Motion carried 8/0 
 
Request for Bid Waivers from Police Department 
 
Priority Dispatch System ESP License Renewal with Priority Dispatch Corp. 
 
MOTION By Harry Amadasun 
  seconded by John Morrison 
  

that in accordance with Section 10-7(c) of the Town of East Hartford Code 
of Ordinances, the Town Council waive the bidding procedures required by 
Section 10-7(b) and allow the Police Department to renew the Town’s 
Priority Dispatch System ESP license with Priority Dispatch Corp., covering 
the period from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 in the amount of $8,960 as 
detailed in a memo from Interim Chief of Police Mack S. Hawkins to Mayor 
Connor Martin dated December 1, 2023. 

 
  Motion carried 8/0 
 
Q Plus for EMD Quality Performance Review Renewal with Priority Dispatch Corp. 
 
MOTION By Harry Amadasun 
  seconded by John Morrison 
 

that in accordance with Section 10-7(c) of the Town of East Hartford Code 
of Ordinances, the Town Council waive the bidding procedures required by 



 
 
December 12, 2023  Volume 92 7 

Section 10-7(b) and allow the Police Department to renew Q Plus for EMD 
Quality Performance Review, with Priority Dispatch Corp., covering the 
period from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 in the amount of $20,800 as 
detailed in a memo from Interim Chief of Police Mack S. Hawkins to Mayor 
Connor Martin dated December 1, 2023. 

 
  Motion carried 8/0 
 
Grant Applications 
 
State Department of Aging and Disability Services American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 
Funding 
 
MOTION By Angie Parkinson 
  seconded by Travis Simpson 
 
  to adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS; the State of Connecticut Department of Aging and Disability Services 
has awarded the Town $109,000.00 in state American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 
funds, and; 
 
WHEREAS; the Town wishes to use these funds on increased programming for 
seniors and improvements to the Senior Center facilities, 
 
NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED; that Connor S. Martin, Mayor of the 
Town of East Hartford, is authorized to make application to, and execute and 
approve on behalf of this corporation, any and all documents, contracts, and 
amendments as may be required by the State Department of Aging as they pertain 
to this ARPA grant. 

 
  On call of the vote, the motion carried 8/0 
 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Community Project Funding 
(CPF)/Congressionally Directed Spending Grant for Rehabilitation of the Hockanum River 
Trail 
 
MOTION By Angie Parkinson 
  seconded by Travis Simpson 
 
  to adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS; In the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2022, (P.L. 117-103) (the 
Act), Congress made available “grants for the Economic Development Initiative for 
the purposes of Community Project Funding/Congressionally Directed Spending,” 
and, 
 
WHEREAS; the Act allocated $700,000 to the Town of East Hartford for the 
rehabilitation of the Hockanum River Linear Park Trail, 
 



 
 
December 12, 2023  Volume 92 8 

NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED; that Connor S. Martin, Mayor of the 
Town of East Hartford, is authorized to make application to, and execute and 
approve on behalf of this corporation, any and all documents, contracts, and 
amendments as may be required by the U.S, Department of Housing and Urban 
Development as they pertain to this Community Project Funding/Congressionally 
Directed Spending grant. 

  
  On call of the vote, the motion carried 8/0 
 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Community Project Funding 
(CPF)/Congressionally Directed Spending Grant Appropriation for Purchase of the 
Downtown East Hartford Post Office 
 
MOTION By Angie Parkinson 
  seconded by Tom Rup 
 
  to adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS; In the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2022, (P.L. 117-103) (the 
Act), Congress made available “grants for the Economic Development Initiative for 
the purposes of Community Project Funding/Congressionally Directed Spending,” 
and, 
 
WHEREAS; the Act allocated $600,000 to the Town of East Hartford for the East 
Hartford Downtown Post Office Acquisition, 
 
NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED; that Connor S. Martin, Mayor of the 
Town of East Hartford, is authorized to make application to, and execute and 
approve on behalf of this corporation, any and all documents, contracts, and 
amendments as may be required by the U.S, Department of Housing and Urban 
Development as they pertain to this Community Project Funding/Congressionally 
Directed Spending grant. 

 
  On call of the vote, the motion carried 8/0 
 
Summer Youth Employment and Learning Program Funding Reimbursement from Capital 
Workforce Partners 
 
MOTION By Sebrina Wilson 
  seconded by Travis Simpson 
 
  to adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS; Capital Workforce Partners (CWP) will reimburse the Town’s ARPA 
funds under the Summer Youth Employment and Learning Program and 
 
WHEREAS; these funds can be used to provide East Hartford youth age 14-21 
with employment and learning experience, while offering local employers 
subsidized wages for the interns’ labor 
 



 
 
December 12, 2023  Volume 92 9 

NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED; that Connor Martin, Mayor of the 
Town of East Hartford, is authorized to make application to, and execute and 
approve on behalf of this corporation, any and all documents, contracts, and 
amendments as may be required by CWP and the state of CT as they pertain to 
this Summer Youth Employment and Learning Program grant. 

  
  On call of the vote, the motion carried 8/0 
 

Inclusion of Hartford Public Library as Sub-grantee re: Affordable Connectivity Program 
(ACP) Outreach Grant Program: National Competitive Outreach Program 

 
MOTION By Sebrina Wilson 
  seconded by Travis Simpson 
 
  to adopt the following resolution: 

 
WHEREAS; the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) has made funding 
available through the Affordable Connectivity Program (ACP) Outreach Grant 
Program, and; 
 
WHEREAS; this program can provide funding and resources needed to increase 
awareness of and participation in the ACP among those households most in need 
of affordable connectivity, and; 
 
WHEREAS; a partnership agreement with the Hartford Public Library is critical to 
the success of this endeavor, 
 
NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED; that Connor S. Martin, Mayor of the 
Town of East Hartford, is authorized to make application to, and execute and 
approve on behalf of this corporation, any and all documents, contracts, and 
amendments as may be required by the FCC as they pertain to this Affordable 
Connectivity Program (ACP) Outreach Grant Program. 

 
  On call of the vote, the motion carried 8/0 
  
Recommendations from Personnel and Pensions Subcommittee 
 
Proposed Revision to Job Description and Pay Grade for Position of Project Manager – 
Sustainability in Department of Public Works 
 
MOTION By Awet Tsegai 
  seconded by Tom Rup 
 

to approve the Proposed Revision to Job Description and Pay Grade for 
the Position of Project Manager – Sustainability in Department of Public 
Works, dated November 9, 2023, as provided by the Director of Human 
Resources at the December 6, 2023 Personnel and Pensions 
Subcommittee Meeting. 

 
  Motion carried 7/0 (Parkinson Out of Chamber) 
 



 
 
December 12, 2023  Volume 92 10 

Proposed Revision to Job Description for Position of Youth Outreach Coordinator in 
Department of Health and Human Services, Crisis Intervention Division  
 
MOTION By Awet Tsegai 
  seconded by Tom Rup 
 

to approve the Proposed Revision to Job Description for the Position of 
Youth Outreach Coordinator in the Department of Health and Human 
Services, Crisis Intervention dated October 24, 2023, as presented by the 
Director of Human Resources at the December 6, 2023 Personnel and 
Pensions Subcommittee Meeting. 

 
  Motion carried 7/0 (Parkinson Out of Chamber) 
 
Proposed Revision to Job Description and Pay Grade and Change in Title for Position of 
Administrative Aide in the Fire Department 
 
MOTION By Awet Tsegai 
  seconded by Tom Rup 
 

to approve the Proposed Revision to Job Description and Pay Grade and 
Change in Title for the Position of Administrative Aide to the title of 
Executive Administrative Coordinator in the Fire Department dated 
December 1, 2023, as presented by the Director of Human Resources at 
the December 6, 2023 Personnel and Pensions Subcommittee Meeting. 

 
  Motion carried 7/0 (Parkinson Out of Chamber) 
 
Referrals to Personnel and Pensions Subcommittee 
 
Proposed Revision to Job Description and Pay Grade and Change in Title for Position of 
Accounting Assistant, Finance 
 
Proposed Revision to Job Description and Pay Grade and Change in Title for Position of 
Payroll Coordinator 
 
MOTION By Awet Tsegai 
  seconded by  
 

to refer to the Personnel and Pensions Subcommittee the Proposed 
Revision to Job Description and Pay Grade and Change in Title for 
Position of Accounting Assistant and the Proposed Revision to Job 
Description and Pay Grade and Change in Title for Position of Payroll 
Coordinator in a memo from Mayor Connor S. Martin to Rich Kehoe, Town 
Council Chair dated December 8, 2023 with instructions to review the 
positions and report back to the full Council with its recommendations, if 
any. 

 
  Motion carried 8/0 
 
Amusement Permit Application:  Brian A. Aselton Memorial Snow Dash 5k 



 
 
December 12, 2023  Volume 92 11 

 
MOTION By Harry Amadasun 
  seconded by Tom Rup 
 

that pursuant to the Section 5-3(e) of the East Hartford Code of 
Ordinances, the Town Council approve the outdoor amusement permit 
application for the event entitled “Brian A. Aselton Memorial Snow Dash 
5k” as submitted by Mack Hawksin, Interim Chief of Police, scheduled for 
Sunday, January 7, 2024 from 11 am to 3 pm at Langford School located 
at 61 Alps Drive with a weather date of January 28, 2024 at the same time, 
subject to compliance with adopted codes and regulations of the State of 
Connecticut, the Town of East Hartford, and any other stipulations required 
by the Town of East Hartford or its agencies.   

 
  Motion carried 8/0 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR COUNCILLORS TO DIRECT QUESTIONS TO THE 
ADMINISTRATION  
 
Councillor Tsegai acknowledged the Administration’s prompt response to make repairs to 
the entrance sign at Goodwin Park. 
 
Councillor Amadasun recognized the efforts of various Town Departments for their 
engagement in numerous community events during the holidays. 
 
Councillor Wilson wished all in attendance a Happy Holidays and thanked Councillors for 
their participation in Ugly Sweater Day. 
 
Councillor Simpson asked if there has been any additional consideration of incentives to 
encourage East Hartford residents to apply for open-for-hire positions in the Town’s 
Administration.  Mayor Martin stated that the Town has recently implemented a stipend for 
bilingual employees.  The Mayor will discuss additional incentives with the Human 
Resources Director and come back to the Council with their findings. 
 
COUNCIL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTERS 

 
The pending CHRO claim known as Felicia Gillespie v. Town of East Hartford Public 
Schools, CHRO Case No.2340192, involving former Board of Education employee, 
Felicia Gillespie. 
 
MOTION By Sebrina Wilson 
  seconded by Travis Simpson 
 

to accept the recommendation of Corporation Counsel to fully and finally 
settle the pending CHRO claim known as Felicia Gillespie v. Town of East 
Hartford Public Schools, CHRO Case No.2340192, involving former Board 
of Education employee, Felicia Gillespie for a total sum of $2,500.00. 
   
Motion carried 8/0 

 



 
 
December 12, 2023  Volume 92 12 

The pending assessment (tax) appeal known as HARTFORD EAST ELDERLY 
APARTMENTS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP Et Al. v. TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD – HHB-
CV22-6072753-S, involving real property located at 886 Main Street, East Hartford for the 
Grand List year 2021 through 2025. 
 
MOTION By Sebrina Wilson 
  seconded by John Morrison 
 

MOVE THAT, this Council accept the recommendation of Corporation 
Counsel to settle the pending tax assessment appeal known as 
HARTFORD EAST ELDERLY APARTMENTS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP v. 
TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD, Docket Number HHB-CV22-6072753-S -S, 
involving real property located at 886 Main Street, East Hartford to adjust 
the Appraised Parcel Value of $12,582,310.00 to $10,700,000.00 for the 
Grand List year 2021 through Grand List Year 2025 and authorize a refund 
or reduction of $54,022.42 for grand list year 2021, and a refund or 
reduction of up to $93,519.18 for Grand list year 2022.  
  
Motion carried 8/0 

 
The pending assessment (tax) appeal known as VISTA TOWER, LLC v. TOWN OF EAST 
HARTFORD – HHB-CV22-6073866-S, involving real property located at 36 Main Street, 
East Hartford for the Grand List year 2021 through 2025. 
 
MOTION By Sebrina Wilson 
  seconded by John Morrison 
 

MOVE THAT, this Council accept the recommendation of Corporation 
Counsel to settle the pending tax assessment appeal known as VISTA 
TOWER, LLC v. TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD, Docket Number HHB-
CV22-6073866-S, involving real property located at 36 Main Street, East 
Hartford to adjust the Appraised Parcel Value of $1,205,170.00 to 
$1,140,000.00 for the Grand List year 2021 through Grand List Year 2025 
and authorize a refund or reduction of $1,870.42 for grand list year 2021, 
and a refund or reduction of $1,940.68 for Grand list year 2022. 
   
Motion carried 8/0 

 
OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO SPEAK 
 
Bridgitte Prince, 41 Bodwell Road 
 

 thanked the Administration in supporting the Thanksgiving Dinner hosted by Cathy 
Flippen and the Destiny Outreach group at the Hockanum Park Apartment 
Complex.   

 supports the Administration’s vision to extend the Raymond Library with regards to 
the proposed acquisition of the Post Office facility on Main Street.   

 Commended the Town’s efforts with providing services through the Summer Youth 
Employment and Learning Program. 

 Wished the Council a Happy Holidays. 
 



 
 
December 12, 2023  Volume 92 13 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION By John Morrison 
  seconded by Harry Amadasun 
 
  to adjourn (9:33 pm)      
 
  Motion carried 8/0 
 
The Vice Chair wished all a good evening and Happy Holidays and announced that the 
next meeting of the Town Council will be held on Tuesday January 2, 2024. 
 
     Attest  ___________________________________ 
           Jason Marshall 
                               TOWN COUNCIL CLERK 



December 19, 2023 1 Volume 92 

Community Cultural Center Room 111 
 

December 19, 2023 
 

Sepcial Meeting Re: Mayor’s Administration Priorities 
 

PRESENT Chair Richard F. Kehoe, Vice Chair Donald Bell, Jr., Majority Leader 
Sebrina Wilson, Minority Leader John Morrison, Councilors Angie 
Parkinson, Awet Tsegai, Harry O. Amadasun, Jr. and Travis Simpson  

 
ABSENT Councilor Thomas Rup 
 
ALSO    Mayor Connor S. Martin 
PRESENT  Eileen Buckheit, Director of Development 
   Melissa McCaw, Chief Administrative Officer and Finance Director  
   Steve Hnatuk, Assistant Director of Development 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Kehoe called the meeting to order at 6:12 p.m. 
 
MAYOR’S ADMINISTRATIVE PRIORITIES 
 
Mayor Martin stated that the purpose of this meeting is to share a brief update on current 
Town Economic Development projects as well as additional initiatives under 
consideration by the Administration.   The Mayor stated that as stakeholders in service 
of the community, he is looking for the Council’s feedback to vet his vision to grow East 
Hartford’s Grand List and improve our quality of life through successful and sustainable 
projects.  
 
The Mayor provided a brief summary of the major development projects inherited from 
the previous administration, including: 
 

 Silver Lane Plaza- The relocation of tenants is still in process.  A bid for 
redevelopment has been received by the administration, and the Mayor 
anticipates demolition of the middle building on the property in February.  The 
Council discussed the priority of providing more retail space in the area.  After 
additional discussions with the developer, the mayor will have further discussions 
with the town council as well as the public.    

 Rentschler Field is slated to for completion in March.   Upon completion, National 
Development will seek additional tenants for the parcel next to Cabelas which is 
targeted for science or high tech companies.   

 Concourse Park- Mayor Walsh had previously approved an extension until April 
for the developer to obtain funding for the project.  The Mayor anticipates having 
the developers attend the January 16th meeting of the Town Council to provide 
an update on current financing for the project.  

 Church Corners Inn- The bid has been awarded to Parker Benjamin with plans 
for conversion of the space into 24 apartments with commercial space.  The 
Mayor anticipates a vote on the transfer of the property will be presented to the 
Council in January.  Parking solutions are still under review. 



December 19, 2023 2 Volume 92 

 Veteran’s Memorial Clubhouse- The Administration awarded a public/partnership 
for the property with Maneeley’s Catering Services.  The Mayor is considering 
changing the scope of development to incorporate recommendations of 
Maneeley’s on how to best use the venue which may exceed the budget for the 
project, currently at $6.5 million.  The Council discussed providing local residents 
the opportunity for feedback on the best use of the facility as well as more 
consideration to keep the space community-focused with public accessibility.    

 Town Hall Renovations- The Mayor shared that renovations are on schedule and 
under budget and anticipates Town departments moving back into the building in 
March. 

 Youth Sports Facility- Administration is anticipating results of the needs 
assessment in the 9 to 12 weeks that will provide further guidance on next steps 
for the project. 

 Founders Plaza - The Mayor is working with the Port Eastside partnership group 
to best understand the expectations and requirements of the State and Town for 
the project.  A request has been made for a master plan of the project that 
highlight the benefits of the project for the Town and its residents.  The Bond 
Commission has previously awarded the Town with funds for the demolition of 
the property at 99 Founders Plaza.  The Capital Region Development Authority 
will only release funds once a more complete scope of the project has been 
provided.  Administration has proposed isolating the redevelopment of 99 
Founders Plaza as a singular phase to the larger project.  The Mayor hopes to 
have a demolition and development agreement signed off on by all parties to 
bring to the Council for approval in the coming weeks. 

 
The Mayor then discussed with the Council a list of additional projects currently in 
development or under consideration, including the following: 
 

 Creation of a pollinator garden at DePietro Park as part of a larger pollinator 
pathway in partnership with the Rotary Club, the Beautification Commission and 
the East Hartford Garden Club. 

 Partnership with Handel Farm to plant a sunflower garden path at DePietro Park. 
 Reassessing the components of previously proposed DPW facility improvements 

to save cost. 
 Creation of a formal ceremonial burning ground for the purpose of retiring 

American flags. 
 Reimagining Bicentennial Square by relocating historical veterans monuments 

throughout Town for the purpose of creating a centralized historical experience 
for residents. 

 Placement of sidewalks along Naubuc Avenue towards Glastonbury. 
 
The Mayor discussed with the Council prioritizing the revitalization of Main Street, with a 
goal of developing an enhanced community experience that promotes safety, 
entertainment and supports small businesses.  A catalyst of his vision is the closure of 
Bissell Street (across from the Town Green) to provide for a retail area similar to 
Hartford’s Pratt Street and Purnell Place in Manchester.  An RFP has been put to bid for 
the purpose of studying the impact on traffic flow if the road were to be closed off. 
 
Administration plans to pursue a deeper transportation study with CRCOG for the 
entirety of Main Street for the purpose of creating a larger downtown revitalization plan 



December 19, 2023 3 Volume 92 

for the area.  He noted that Main Street is a state route so the town will be collaborating 
with the Connecticut Department of Transportation on any improvements.  
 
The Mayor expressed his appreciation to the Council for their feedback on the various 
projects.  A more complete presentation that incorporates comments provided by the 
Council will be made to the community by way of a special meeting planned for late 
January/February. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION By John Morrison 
  seconded by Don Bell 
 
  to adjourn at 8:04 pm  
 

Motion carried 8/0  
 
   

Attest___________________________ 
Jason Marshall 

                  Town Council Clerk 



  

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

 

DATE:   December 27, 2023 

TO:   Richard F. Kehoe, Chair 

FROM:   Mayor Connor S. Martin 

RE:    RESIGNATIONS: Boards and Commissions 

 

Attached are letters received by my office from the following boards or commission members stating 
their resignation from their respective board or commissions.    

 Adam Gagnon           Full Member       Board Assessment Appeals                                 12/23 

 Veronica Rosario           Full Member       Historic District                                                      12/23 

 Kim Knapp                        Full Member       In-Land Wetlands Commission                           12/23 

 Carol Noel                        Full Member      Planning & Zoning                                                  12/23 

 Harrison Amadusun Jr.  Full Member       Zoning Board of Appeals                                      12/23 
 

 

Please place these resignations on the January 2, 2024 Town Council agenda and share our appreciation 
as a community for the valuable service this member has provided by volunteering her time on the 
above mentioned commission. 
 
 
 
C: K. Bilodeau, Town Clerk 
  
 



  

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

 

DATE:  December 28, 2023 

TO:  Richard F. Kehoe, Chair 

FROM:  Mayor Connor S. Martin 

RE: RESOLUTION: Hartford Foundation for Public Giving Summer Enrichment 2024 

grant program 

 

The Town of East Hartford is looking to apply to the Hartford Foundation for Public Giving for 

funding under the Summer Programming 2024 grant program for funds to expand enrichment 

opportunities for participants in East Hartford Parks & Recreation Sunburst Camp, which serves 

campers with disabilities ages 6 – 21.  

This grant will supplement existing funds for enrichment to enable the library to offer enhanced 

opportunities for Sunburst campers during summer 2024: more programs offered by outside 

presenters and more hours from library outreach staff on site at the camp location. 

 

Please place this item on the Town Council agenda for January 2, 2024 meeting.  

 
C: P. O’Sullivan, Grants Manager 
             E. Buckheit, Development Director    
 Sarah Morgan, Library Director 
 



GRANTS ADMINISTRATION 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Mayor Connor Martin 
 
FROM:  Paul O’Sullivan, Grants Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Council Resolution – Hartford Foundation for Public Giving Summer 

Enrichment 2024 grant program 
 
DATE:  November 29, 2023 
 
 
Attached is a draft Town Council resolution authorizing you as Mayor to apply to the 
Hartford Foundation for Public Giving for funding under the Summer Programming 2024 
grant program for funds to expand enrichment opportunities for participants in East 
Hartford Parks & Recreation Sunburst Camp, which serves campers with disabilities ages 
6 – 21.  
 
The Hartford Foundation’s Summer Programming grant primarily supports programs for 
Hartford youth. However, the grant may also be used to support programs for people with 
disabilities across the region, including in East Hartford. 
 
The East Hartford Public Library has offered enrichment programming for Parks & 
Recreation campers since summer 2021. This grant will supplement existing funds for 
enrichment to enable the library to offer enhanced opportunities for Sunburst campers 
during summer 2024: more programs offered by outside presenters and more hours from 
library outreach staff on site at the camp location. 
 
I respectfully request that this item be placed on the Town Council agenda for their 
meeting to be held on December 12, 2023.  Please contact me at extension 7206 if you 
have any questions. 
 
Attachments: as stated 
 
 
Cc:  Eileen Buckheit, Development Director 
 Sarah Morgan, Library Director  
 



TOWN COUNCIL RESOLUTION  
GRANT INFORMATION FORM 

 
Grant Description:    Hartford Foundation for Public Giving Summer Programming 2024 
 
Funder:  Hartford Foundation for Public Giving 
 
Grant Amount: $5,000 
 
 
Frequency:     ☒ One time ☐ Annual ☐ Biennial ☐ Other             
 

First year received: N/A   
    
Last 3 years received:   N/A   N/A   N/A 
    

Funding level by year: $ N/A $ N/A $ N/A 
 
Is a local match required?      ☐ Yes         ☒ No 
 
 
If yes, how much?                Not applicable 

 
 
 
 

 
From which account?  Not applicable 
 
Grant purpose:           To provide people of all ages with disabilities across the region with an 

enriching summer experience 
 
Results achieved:       Through a combination of summer learning, enrichment, and recreation to 

foster academic, developmental, and personal skills by using engaging 
strategies that campers will enjoy. 

 
Duration of grant:      Summer 2024 
 
 
Status of application:   Under development 
 
 
Meeting attendee:      Library Director Sarah Morgan, x4340 
 
 
Comments:                None 



 
 
 

I, Jason Marshall, the duly appointed Clerk of the Town Council of the Town of 
East Hartford, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
Connecticut, hereby certify that the following is a true copy of a resolution 
adopted at a meeting of the East Hartford Town Council of said corporation, duly 
held on the 12th day of December, 2023 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 
 
WHEREAS; the Hartford Foundation for Public Giving has made funding 
available through the Summer Programming 2024 grant program, and 
 
WHEREAS; this program can provide funding and resources needed to expand 
enrichment opportunities for participants in Sunburst Camp, 
 
NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED; that Connor Martin, Mayor of the 
Town of East Hartford, is authorized to make application to, and execute and 
approve on behalf of this corporation, any and all documents, contracts, and 
amendments as may be required by the Hartford Foundation for Public Giving as 
they pertain to this Summer Programming 2024 grant 
 

AND I DO CERTIFY that the above resolution has not been in any way altered, 

amended, or repealed, and is now in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do hereunto set my hand and affix the corporate seal 
of said Town of East Hartford the ___ day of December, 2023. 
 
 
        Seal                                             Signed: ___________________________ 
                                                                       Jason Marshall, Town Council Clerk 
 
 
allocation 
 



CONNOR MARTIN    TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD                                 PHONE (860) 291-7280 

               MAYOR                      FAX (860) 282-2978 

              740 MAIN STREET           WWW.EASTHARTFORDCT.GOV 

    EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT   06108             

          VERONICA ROSARIO            MARY J. MOUREY 
DEMOCRATIC REGISTRAR OF VOTERS           REPUBLICAN REGISTRAR OF VOTERS 
               (860) 291-7281                           (860) 291-7282 

cc:  Katerine Tchelidze 
  Robert Fitzgerald 
  Mellissa McCaw 
  Kelly Bilodeau 
  Jessenia Martinez 

 
 
December 20, 2023 

 
 

Connor Martin 
Mayor 
Town of East Hartford 
740 Main St. 
East Hartford, CT  06108 

 
 
Dear Mayor Martin: 
 
The Office of the Secretary of the State has provided a grant for $10,500.00 to each 
municipality for costs related to implementing and conducting early voting.   
 
We understand that our town ordinance requires the mayor’s signature and the Town Council’s 
approval to apply for and accept this grant.  
 
Attached is the agreement form that was emailed to us requiring signatures of the registrars, 
authorized town official signature and to be returned no later than December 31, 2023. The form 
was edited to state that “[t]he signature below and acceptance of funds is contingent upon 
approval by the East Hartford town council at their next regularly scheduled meeting on January 
2, 2024.”   
 
We understand that the town council will be meeting on January 2, 2024 and hope that this can 
be acted on at this meeting.  
 
Thank you for your consideration on this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 
Mary Mourey       Veronica Rosario 
Registrar of Voters      Registrar of Voters   

http://www.easthartfordct.gov/




TOWN COUNCIL RESOLUTION  
GRANT INFORMATION FORM 

 
Grant Description:    Early Voting Implementation Grant 
 
 
Funder:  CT Secretary of State’s Office 
 
Grant Amount: $10,500.00 
 
 
Frequency:     ☒ One time ☐ Annual ☐ Biennial ☐ Other             
 

First year received: N/A   
    
Last 3 years received:   N/A   N/A   N/A 
    

Funding level by year: $ N/A $ N/A $ N/A 
 
Is a local match required?      ☐ Yes         ☒ No 
 
 
If yes, how much?                Not applicable 

 
 
 
 

 
From which account?  Not applicable 
 
Grant purpose:           To help defray costs to municipalities related to implementing and 

conducting early voting 
 
Results achieved:       Facilitation of compliance with new early voting statute 
 
Duration of grant:      Funds are to be fully expended by December 31, 2024 
 
 
Status of application:   Submitted.  Grant deadline did not allow for Council consideration prior to 

due date.  If Council approval is not secured, application will be 
withdrawn. 

 
 
Meeting attendee:      To be determined 
 
 
Comments:                None 



Report an accessibility issue.

Press Releases

06/07/2023

Governor Lamont Signs Legislation Establishing Early Voting in Connecticut Elections and Primaries

(HARTFORD, CT) – Governor Ned Lamont today signed legislation into law creating a system of early voting for general elections, special elections, and primaries in

Connecticut.

The legislation, Public Act 23-5 (https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?which_year=2023&selBillType=Bill&bill_num=5004), requires 14 days of early
voting for general elections, 7 days of early voting for most primaries, and 4 days of early voting for special elections and presidential preference primaries. It will apply to
elections and primaries that occur on or after January 1, 2024. Every municipality in the state will be required to establish at least one early voting location and has the
option of establishing more.

Connecticut is one of the last states in the nation to adopt a system of early voting. Now that Governor Lamont has signed this bill, the only states that do not permit early

voting are Alabama, Mississippi, and New Hampshire. All other states allow it.

“Encouraging voters to cast a ballot in elections must be a priority for any functioning democracy, and expanding the hours that voters can cast a ballot will give more people
an opportunity to get to their polling place and vote,” Governor Lamont said. “In today’s economy, it is not realistic to expect every eligible voter to travel in person to one
speci�c location during a limited set of hours on a Tuesday to cast their ballot. Nearly every other state in our country has early voting, and I am glad that Connecticut is
�nally joining them. Based on the results of last year’s election during which Connecticut voters were asked whether they want early voting, it is clear that this is something

people here are demanding. I applaud the bipartisan members of the General Assembly who voted to send this bill to my desk, and I thank the advocates – including former
Secretary of the State Denise Merrill and Secretary of the State Stephanie Thomas – for their e�orts to work with our municipalities to create this system. I am glad to put my
signature on this bill.”

“Many people do not have the privilege of taking time o� work, coming in a little late, or leaving a little early to cast their vote on Election Day,” Lt. Governor Susan
Bysiewicz said. “By giving residents more time to vote, this bill will make it easier for everyone – especially our seniors, students, and working families – to exercise this

important constitutional right. I’m proud that Connecticut is catching up to the vast majority of our fellow states that allow for early voting. Thank you to Governor Lamont,
Secretary of the State Stephanie Thomas, former Secretary of the State Denise Merrill, and so many others who worked to pass this important bill.”

The bill passed the House of Representatives on May 4, 2023, on a bipartisan vote of 107-35, with nine people absent. It passed in the Senate on May 31, 2023, on a
bipartisan vote of 27-7, with two people absent.

Twitter: @GovNedLamont (https://twitter.com/GovNedLamont )
Facebook: O�ce of Governor Ned Lamont (https://www.facebook.com/GovNedLamont)

CT.gov Home  (/) Governor Ned Lamont  (/O�ce-of-the-Governor) News  (/O�ce-of-the-Governor/News) Press Releases  (/O�ce-of-the-Governor/News/Press-Releases)

Governor Lamont Signs Legislation Establishing Early Voting in Connecticut Elections and Primaries

(/O�ce-of-the-Governor)

The O�ce of
Governor Ned Lamont

FE
ED

BA
CK

 + +

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/M8XWWCN?Acc=true&SourceUrl=https://portal.ct.gov/Office-of-the-Governor/News/Press-Releases/2023/06-2023/Governor-Lamont-Signs-Legislation-Establishing-Early-Voting
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/M8XWWCN?Acc=true&SourceUrl=https://portal.ct.gov/Office-of-the-Governor/News/Press-Releases/2023/06-2023/Governor-Lamont-Signs-Legislation-Establishing-Early-Voting
https://www.cga.ct.gov/asp/cgabillstatus/cgabillstatus.asp?which_year=2023&selBillType=Bill&bill_num=5004
https://twitter.com/GovNedLamont
https://www.facebook.com/GovNedLamont
https://portal.ct.gov/
https://portal.ct.gov/Office-of-the-Governor
https://portal.ct.gov/Office-of-the-Governor/News
https://portal.ct.gov/Office-of-the-Governor/News/Press-Releases
https://portal.ct.gov/Office-of-the-Governor


 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

I, Jason Marshall, the duly appointed Clerk of the Town Council of the Town of 
East Hartford, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
Connecticut, hereby certify that the following is a true copy of a resolution 
adopted at a meeting of the East Hartford Town Council of said corporation, duly 
held on the ___ day of January, 2024 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 
 
WHEREAS; the Office of the Connecticut Secretary of State has made funding 
available to help defray the costs related to implementing and conducting early 
voting, and; 
 
WHEREAS; Acceptable utilization of funds includes costs directly tied to 
changes necessary to implement early voting, including labor costs, printing 
costs, location-related expenses, voter education, equipment and supplies. 
 
NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED; that Connor S. Martin, Mayor of the 
Town of East Hartford, is authorized to make application to, and execute and 
approve on behalf of this corporation, any and all documents, contracts, and 
amendments as may be required by the Office of the Secretary of the State as 
they pertain to this Early Voting grant. 
  
AND I DO CERTIFY that the above resolution has not been in any way altered, 

amended, or repealed, and is now in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do hereunto set my hand and affix the corporate seal 
of said Town of East Hartford the ___ day of January, 2024. 
 
 
        Seal                                             Signed: ___________________________ 
                                                                       Jason Marshall, Town Council Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Real Estate Acq. & Disp. Comm.  December 12, 2023 1

COMMUNITY CULTURAL CENTER ROOM 111 / MICROSOFT “TEAMS” 
 

REAL ESTATE ACQUISITION AND DISPOSITION COMMITTEE 
 

DECEMBER 12, 2023 
 
PRESENT Angie Parkinson, Temporary Chair; Councillors Awet Tsegai and Tom Rup 
 
ALSO  Rich Gentile, Assistant Corporation Counsel 
PRESENT   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Parkinson called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOMINATION OF OFFICERS 
 
Chair: 
 
MOTION By Tom Rup 
  seconded by Awet Tsegai 
 
  to appoint Angie Parkinson as Chair of the Real Estate Acquisition &  
  Disposition Committee. 
 

Motion carried 3/0 
  

Secretary: 
 
MOTION By Tom Rup 
  seconded by Angie Parkinson 
 
  to appoint Awet Tsegai as Secretary of the Real Estate Acquisition &  
  Disposition Committee. 
 

Motion carried 3/0 
 
ADOPTION OF RULES GOVERNING MEETINGS 
 
MOTION By Awet Tsegai 
  seconded by Tom Rup 
 
  to adopt Robert’s Rules of Order as the rules that shall govern  

parliamentary procedure at all subcommittee meetings, with the exception  
that (1) the Chair shall not be required to restate the motion of any  
Council member unless requested by another Councillor, or when in the  
discretion of the Chair, such restatement is necessary to avoid any  
confusion as to the motion; and (2) where such rules are in conflict with  
the provisions of the State Statutes, the Town Charter, or Town  
Ordinances. 



Real Estate Acq. & Disp. Comm.  December 12, 2023 2

Motion carried 3/0 
 
 
ESTABLISHMENT OF MEETING DATES 
 
MOTION By Awet Tsegai 
  seconded by Tom Rup 
 
  to hold meetings at the call of the Chair. 
 

Motion carried 3/0 
 
STORAGE OF RECORDS 
 
MOTION By Awet Tsegai 
  seconded by Tom Rup 
 
  to store records in the Town Council office. 
 

Motion carried 3/0 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
January 30, 2023 Meeting 
 
MOTION By Tom Rup 
  seconded by Awet Tsegai 
 

to approve the minutes of the January 30, 2023 meeting. 
 
Motion carried 3/0 
 
 
 

OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO SPEAK 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Need for Referral, 6.9 Acres of State Land abutting Brookside Lane 
 
Rich Gentile, Assistant Corporation Counsel, stated that at a special meeting in January 
2022 the Town Council passed a motion to accept Brookside Lane as a Town Road.  It 
was Mr. Gentile’s initial assumption that a parcel of 6.9 acres of State Land abutting 
Brookside Lane was included in the referral, but upon review, it appears that the land was 
not included.  Mr. Gentile’s recommendation is to have the approval of the Referral 
addressed at a future Town Council Meeting as a Committee of the Whole.  An approval of 
an 8-24 report by the Planning and Zoning Commission would be required before 
Council’s final vote. 
 
Mr. Gentile reviewed the conditions placed on the land and its potential uses along with 
providing that environmental reviews of the parcel have been performed.   



Real Estate Acq. & Disp. Comm.  December 12, 2023 3

 
Clarification of Town Ownership of Small Parcels Comprising a Portion of East River Drive 
 
Mr. Gentile provided a map and described the location of two small parcels of land that 
comprise part of the roadbed along the current East River Drive.  While reviewing a 
separate matter, Mr. Gentile found original deeds and conveyance statements from 2001 
that appear to never have been officially recorded into the Town’s Land Records. Gentile 
stated that he reached out to Peter Sorokin who serves as legal counsel to the parties who 
initially conveyed the land and Mr. Sorokin indicated that the Town should record the 
deeds.  As these deeds deal with acquiring property that comprise a portion of a Town 
road, an 8-24 review will be need to be coordinated. 
 
MOTION By Tom Rup 
  seconded by Awet Tsegai 
 

Move that the Real Estate Acquisition and Disposition Committee 
recommend that, subject to receipt of a Connecticut General Statutes 
Section 8-24 report from the East Hartford Planning and Zoning 
Commission, the Town Council: (i) waive all requirements of Town 
Ordinances Section 10-18(b) with respect to the acquisition of two parcels 
of property identified on the attached deeds, which parcels of property (the 
“Properties”) comprise a portion of the Town Road known as East River 
Drive, such waiver being in the best interests of the Town since the 
attached deeds were tendered and accepted by the Town in 2001, the 
Town has treated the Properties as being owned by the Town since that 
date, and failure to record the deeds was an error; and (ii) approve the 
acquisition of the Properties and the recording of the attached deeds. 

 
  Motion carried 3/0   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION By Awet Tsegai 
 seconded by Tom Rup 
 
 to adjourn (6:46 p.m.)  
 
 Motion carried 3/0. 
 
cc:   Town Council  
 Connor Martin, Mayor 
 Rich Gentile, Assistant Corporation Counsel 
 Eileen Buckheit, Director of Development 
  
 









































































  

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

 

DATE:                   November 15, 2023 

TO:                       Richard F. Kehoe, Chair 

FROM:                 Mayor Connor S. Martin 

RE:                        REFERRAL: Real Estate Acquisition and Disposition Committee 

 

Please see the attached letter and accompanying documents for referral to the Real Estate Acquisition 
and Disposition Committee regarding small parcels of property that comprise part of the roadbed of the 
current East River Drive.  
 
Please place this item on the town council agenda for November 21, 2023 meeting. 

 

C: R. Gentile, Assistant Corporation Counsel 

E. Buckheit, Development Director  

         

 
 



OFFICE OF THE CORPORATION COUNSEL 
 

To:       Mayor Connor Martin 

From:   Richard P. Gentile 

Date:    November 15, 2023 

 

RE:    Deeds for property under East River Drive 

 

While reviewing an archived file to find an answer to an unrelated question, I uncovered two original 

deeds and conveyance tax statements for small parcels of property that comprise part of the roadbed of 

the current East River Drive (I have attached copies of the deeds, a December 27, 2001 letter to former 

Assistant Corporation Counsel Richard Quinlan, and a survey showing the parcels in question).  After 

confirming that no similar deeds were recorded, I reached out to Peter Sorokin (mentioned in the letter) 

who confirmed that he still represents the parties in question and indicated that the Town should record 

the deeds.  I would like to do that as soon as possible. 

I respectfully request that you ask Chairman Kehoe to place this matter on the November 21 Town 

Council Agenda as a referral to the Real Estate Acquisition and Disposition Committee. Since these 

deeds deal with acquiring property that comprise a portion of a Town road, I will reach out to the 

Development Office to coordinate the necessary  8-24 review. 

 



















dwilson
Highlight

dwilson
Highlight

dwilson
Highlight

dwilson
Highlight

dwilson
Polygon

dwilson
Highlight

dwilson
Highlight

dwilson
Highlight

dwilson
Highlight

dwilson
Highlight

dwilson
Highlight

dwilson
Polygon



FY 2024-25 Revised Budget Workshop Calendar 
COMMUNITY CULTURAL CENTER 

 
Monday, February 26, 2024  
6:30 p.m. 
 
Mayor’s Summary of Budget 
 
Mayor’s Office 
 
Town Clerk 
Probate Court 
Corporation Counsel 
Town Treasurer 
Town Council 
Registrars of Voters 
Selectmen 
 
Police Department  
Police Administration 
Operations 
Criminal Investigation 
Police Capital Improvements 
 
Public Safety Complex 
Public Safety Communications 
 
Fire Department  
Administration  
Suppression  
Fire Training  
Fire Marshal  
Apparatus Maintenance 
Alarm Maintenance 
Emergency Medical Service 
Emergency Management 
Fire Capital Improvements 
 
Wednesday, February 28, 2024 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board of Education  
Superintendent of Schools 
 
Human Resources 
 
Department of Public Works  
Administration 
Engineering 
Highway Services 



Flood Protection 
Waste Services 
Fleet Services 
Building Maintenance 
Metropolitan District Commission 
Park Maintenance 
Public Works Capital Improvements 
 
Saturday, March 2, 2024 
8:30 a.m. 
 
Boards and Commissions  
Beautification Commission Veterans Commission 
Inland/ Wetlands/Environment Commission Board of Assessment Appeals 
Historic District Commission Commission on Culture & Fine Arts  
Zoning Board of Appeals Public Building Commission  
Board of Ethics Pension & Retiree Benefit Board 
Commission on Aging The Hockanum River Commission  
Services for Persons w/Disabilities Fair Rent Commission 
 
Information Technology 

Health and Human Services  
Administration 
Community Health & Nursing Services 
Environmental Control 
 
Social Services 
 
Youth Services 

Parks and Recreation  
Facilities 
Park Special Programs 
Capital Improvements 
 
Senior Services 
 
East Hartford Works! 
 
Monday, March 4, 2024 
6:30 p.m. 

Library Services 

Development   
Administration 
Redevelopment Agency 
Economic Development Commission 
Planning & Zoning Commission 
Grants Administration 



Inspections and Permits 
 
Finance   
Administration 
Accounts and Control 
Purchasing 
Assessor 
Revenue and Collections 
Employee Benefits 
Risk Management 
Debt Services 
Contingency 
Capital Improvements 
Revenues 
 
Five Year Capital Improvement Plan 
Summary 
Anticipated Needs 
 
Wednesday, March 8, 2024 
7:00 p.m. 
 
Public Hearing – Budget 
  
Monday, March 11, 2024 
7:00 p.m. 
 
Special Meeting – Budget 



FUND BALANCE RESERVE ORDINANCE 
(12/20/2023) 

 
 
Subsection (b) of Section 10-52 of the Town of East Hartford Code of Ordinances is repealed 
and the following is substituted in lieu thereof: 
 
 
Section 10-52. Retiree Benefit Trust Fund. 
 
(b) Income to such fund shall include any amounts appropriated to such fund by the town 
council or as provided in this subsection and any return on investments of such funds. If, at 
the close of any fiscal year, the undesignated reserve fund for the town exceeds ten 
percent of the total budget appropriation for such fiscal year, the budget surplus in such 
fiscal year, as verified by the town auditors, shall be appropriated to the Retiree Benefit 
Trust Fund, provided that effective July 1, 2023, the percentage by which the fund exceeds 
the total budget appropriation shall be as follows: for fiscal year 2022-2023, ten and one 
quarter percent; for fiscal year 2023-24, ten and one half percent; for fiscal year 2024-25, 
ten and three quarter percent; for fiscal year 2025-2026; eleven percent and for fiscal year 
2026-2027 eleven and one quarter percent. The Town Council may, on an affirmative vote of at 
least six councillors,  authorize the retention in the undesignated reserve fund an amount greater 
than the percentage provided in this subsection for such fiscal year 
 
 
Statement of Purpose:  To allow the Town Council to authorize with a supermajority vote the 
retention in Fund Balance an amount exceeding the minimum required percentage prior to the 
automatic transfer of any excess funds to the Retiree Health Trust Fund.   Bond rating agencies at 
this time prefer municipalities retain a minimum of 15% of their annual budget in a reserve fund.  
The current ordinance creates a process to slowly meet that goal over time.  This provision 
allows the Town Council to accelerate that process if financial conditions allow.   



  

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

 

DATE:   December 8, 2023 

TO:   Richard F. Kehoe, Chair 

FROM:   Mayor Connor S. Martin   

RE:   REFERRAL: Personnel and Pensions Subcommittee  

 

Please see the attached proposed revisions to the job descriptions and recommendation of 
paygrade and title changes to the following positions as prepared by HR Director Tyron Harris 
 
Accounting Assistant, Finance with the new title of Accountant 
Payroll Coordinator with the new title of Payroll Manager  
 
Please place this item on the Town Council agenda for the December 12, 2023, meeting for 

referral to the Personnel and Pensions Subcommittee.  

 
C: T. Harris, HR Director 
 M.McCaw, Finance Director 
  
  
  
               

 



TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD 
 

740 Main Street  
East Hartford, Connecticut 06108 

 

MICHAEL P. WALSH 
MAYOR 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

TYRON HARRIS 
DIRECTOR 

OFFICE OF HUMAN 
RESOURCES 

 

(860) 291-7220 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

WWW.EASTHARTFORDCT.GOV 

November 30, 2023 
 
The Hon. Mayor Connor Martin 
740 Main Street 
East Hartford, CT  06108 
  
Re: Accounting Assistant, Finance 
 
Dear Mr. Martin: 
 
Please see the attached job description for the Accounting Assistant, Finance with a new title of 
Accountant. 
Our Chief Administrator Officer, Deputy Finance Director and myself have reviewed the job 
description and salary band from surrounding towns and suggest an upgrade in grade and revamp 
of the current job description based on the needs of East Hartford. I’ve highlighted our changes 
below. 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION 

This position is responsible for recording the receipt of all income (checks, cash, credit card 
payments, grants, wires and other electronic deposits) in the Town’s General Ledger. This 
position is critical in ensuring the completeness and accuracy of the transactions that occur in the 
Town’s numerous bank accounts, investment statements and other accounts in order to produce 
an accurate financial position and year end comprehensive financial statements. The position also 
requires complete knowledge of Accounts Payable duties. This position also has the 
responsibility for making difficult cash management, accounts payable/receivable technical 
decisions, including monitoring cash balances and notifying management when transfers are 
required to meet liabilities, such as payroll and accounts payable. 
 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 Prepare purchase order maintenance entries. Prepare budget amendments and maintenance 
as needed. 

 Record Board of Education accounts payable and payroll journal entries. May record BOE 
cashbook credits. 

 Review and process the monthly journal entry for the Town’s Credit Card transactions in 
coordination with the Purchasing Officer for the Town. 

 Deposits Board of Education State and Federal checks on an as-needed basis and record 
any necessary journal entries. 

 Prepares journal entries to ensure transactions on the Town’s Bank Account are accounted 
for in the Town’s General Ledger. 

 Reviews the balance sheets on a monthly basis to ensure all accounting adjustments are 
completed. 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES 

 Considerable knowledge of the balance sheet and the associated accounting and the 
normal balance of debits and credits. 

 Considerable knowledge of the accounting equation (assets, liabilities and fund balance) 
and understanding in the interpretation and intuition of and impact of journal entries. 



 Demonstrates independent professional and accurate judgement in the administration of 
accounting entries and functions. 

 Considerable knowledge of the interfund matrix and relationship of the Town’s funds and 
the associated accounting necessary to properly record transactions. Requires logical 
reasoning to ensure appropriate follow-up and maintenance of each fund’s respective 
balance sheet. 

Following CSEA/SEIU LOCAL NO. 2001, ARTICLE VIII 8.7, to be considered for a change in 
pay grade, an employee must show that he/she is: (a) performing duties in a competent manner 
that are significantly different from the duties of his/her current classification, and (b) the change 
in his/her duties are so substantial that the position in question is of a different classification than 
his/her current classification. Therefore, I recommend that this position is referred to Town 
Council for consideration of a pay grade change and title change.  

I have created the attached description based on the responsibilities. 
 
Therefore, I recommend that this position be referred to the Town Council for consideration. 
 
Tyron V. Harris 
 
Human Resources Director 

Customer Service. Collaboration. Communication. 



TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD 

 
TITLE:  Accountant          GRADE: 8 12 

DEPARTMENT: Finance          DATE:  12/1/2023 
 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION 

Performs responsible and accurate accounting clerical and bookkeeping work involving the maintenance of de-
partment accounts including cash management and investment.  

Work involves responsibility for preparing standard journal entries for accounting functions.  Duties include veri-
fying calculations, confirming purchase orders and invoices, and reconciling accounts receivable to the general 
ledger, and preparing and inputting this data into a computerized financial management system.  This position is 
responsible for recording the receipt of all income (checks, cash, credit card payments, grants, wires and other 
electronic deposits) in the Town’s General Ledger. This position is critical in ensuring the completeness and ac-
curacy of the transactions that occur in the Town’s numerous bank accounts, investment statements and other ac-
counts in order to produce an accurate financial position and year end comprehensive financial statements. The 
position also requires complete knowledge of Accounts Payable duties. This position also has the responsibility 
for making difficult cash management, accounts payable/receivable technical decisions, including monitoring 
cash balances and notifying management when transfers are required to meet liabilities, such as payroll and ac-
counts payable.  The work requires that the employee have considerable knowledge, skill, and ability in account-
ing, accounts payable and accounts/ receivable functions. This position processes all invoice payment batches for 
accounts payable and reviews back-up for thorough documentation and signatory authority. This position is re-
sponsible for printing of the Town’s accounts payable checks and requires trust and integrity in protecting the as-
sets of the Town. This position also monitors the internal control structure of selected government functions in-
cluding, but not limited to, the parking ticket collection system.  The position requires comprehensive knowledge 
of payroll functionality and serves as a backup to the Payroll Administrator. The position also requires complete 
knowledge of Accounts Payable duties.This position is responsible for adjustments to Purchase Orders and iden-
tifies any requests for Purchase Order adjustments that may be out of compliance with the Town’s Purchasing 
Ordinances and policies. This position is responsible for recording the Board of Education. This position sup-
ports the Town’s Bank Reconciliation process by monitoring transactions and ensure timely recording consistent 
with GASB best practices. 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED 

Works under the general supervision of the Assistant Finance Director.  

SUPERVISION EXERCISED 

None. 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 Provide full charge bookkeeping and accounting functions.  
 Maintain accounting for operating unitsall Town Funds: Prepares standard journal entries for general ac-

counting functions including but not limited to cash, grant, checks and other electronic receipts, cash 
check or other electronic disbursements, and investments.  Prepares daily deposits, tax collection receipts, 
follow-up and redeposit of NSF checks.  

 Prepare purchase order maintenance entries. Prepare budget amendments and maintenance as needed. 
 Record Board of Education accounts payable and payroll journal entries. May record BOE cashbook 

credits. 

Formatted: Underline, Strikethrough



Accounting Assistant, Finance 2

 Prepares monthly bank account reconciliations or depository information for at least four Town accounts 
in several banks. Reconcile Town Ledgers and Sub-ledgers including Board of Education Payroll and Ac-
counts Payable.  

 Maintain and reconcile investment, flexible spending, insurances and retirement accounts. 
 Record the daily financial transactions including interest, deposits, and withdrawals for over 15 different 

bank accounts.  and investment and retirement accounts.  
 Assist with payroll processing, payroll tax reporting, payroll audits and analytics, and other payroll duties. 

Perform payroll processing in the absence of the Payroll Administrator. 
 Using available accounting software, calculating, posting, and verifying transactions in processing finan-

cial data. Resolves discrepancies as needed.  Processes corrections and runs appropriate reports. 
 Using available accounting software, prepares summary information of cash on hand for investment deci-

sions and for timely payments of recurring and long-term obligations.  Transfers funds as required.  Pre-
pares monthly summary of expenditure information for various programs. Prepare monthly and quarterly 
retirement reports to the Finance Director and Retirement Board. 

 Assists in preparing various financial analyses, including but not limited to investment analysis, debt ser-
vice schedule and grant administration, for budget recommendations. Setup account budgets and perform 
increase and decrease maintenance as needed. 

 Supports and periodically acts as the backup to the Payroll Coordinator Administrator and Accounts Pay-
able Clerk, to run general weekly payroll, bi-weekly accounts payable check runs, and other related trans-
actions.  

 Prepares monthly journal entries for several accounts, such asincluding but not limited to, WIC, CDBG, 
Police Contra and Emergency Management Accounts.   

 Review and process the monthly journal entry for the Town’s Credit Card transactions in coordination 
with the Purchasing Officer for the Town. 

 Deposits Board of Education State and Federal checks on an as-needed basis and record any necessary 
journal entries. 

 Prepares journal entries to ensure transactions on the Town’s Bank Account are accounted for in the 
Town’s General Ledger. 

 Reviews the balance sheets on a monthly basis to ensure all accounting adjustments are completed. 
 Prepares monthly reports and draw downs for CDBG – Community Based Block Grant Program. 
 Screens telephone calls and inquiries, ascertains nature of business, refers to appropriate person. 
 Record online credit card payments across multiple different platforms.  
 Complete monthly tax department income reconciliation and journal entries. 
 Prepare quarterly statements along with interest, contributions, and distributions calculations for Deferred 

Compensation and Pension.  
 Prepare quarterly dog fund calculation and subsequent payment to the State of Connecticut. 
 Assist in fiscal year end deliverables including yearly audit preparation and analysis for multiple funds. 
 Assist in calendar year end deliverables including but not limited to 1099 reports and verifications.  
 Supports the annual audit of the Towns accounts and works with external auditors to provide needed in-

formation for the annual audit and the annual Financial Statement Report. Delivery of the required infor-
mation must be completed by the end of September of each fiscal year. 

 Supports the Finance Director in preparing annual Employee Benefit reports to stay in compliance with 
the Affordable Care Act, ERISA, and IRS (5500) reporting. 

 Prepare month-end and year-end activities. 
 Communicate Finance deliverables verbally and in writing to employees and departments. 
 Provide accounting support and training across departments. 



Accounting Assistant, Finance 3

 Maintains a documented system of accounting policies and procedures; implements a system of controls 
over accounting transactions to minimize risk’ maintains standard operating procedures for all areas of 
responsibility and standard journal entries for the position.. 

 Performs adjustments to Purchase Orders in the Town’s Accounting system and identifies any requests for Purchase Order ad-
justments that may be out of compliance with the Town’s Purchasing Ordinances and policies. 

 Perform other accounting and administrative tasks assigned. 
 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES 

 Considerable knowledge of the principles and practices of bookkeeping, including accounts payable, ac-
counts receivable, and basic basic to intermediate accounting. 

 Considerable knowledge of the balance sheet and the associated accounting and the normal balance of 
debits and credits. 

 Considerable knowledge of the accounting equation (assets, liabilities and fund balance) and understand-
ing in the interpretation and intuition of and impact of journal entries. 

 Demonstrates independent professional and accurate judgement in the administration of accounting en-
tries and functions. 

 Considerable knowledge of the interfund matrix and relationship of the Town’s funds and the associated 
accounting necessary to properly record transactions. Requires logical reasoning to ensure appropriate 
follow-up and maintenance of each fund’s respective balance sheet. 

 Considerable knowledge of spreadsheet software applications and word processing software applica-
tions. 

 Maintains professional judgement and conduct in an office environment. 
 Very good skill in using standard office machines including calculator and computer. 
  
 Very good skill in mathematical computations. 
 Considerable ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with coworkers, associ-

ates, and the general public. 
 Very good ability in oral and written communication. 
 Very good ability to maintain detailed, organized and accurate financial records. 
 Very good ability to handle a high volume of paperwork accurately and efficiently. 

 

QUALIFICATIONS 

A bachelor’s degree in accounting or a closely related field, plus two years of responsible bookkeeping or ac-
counting records keeping work (preferably in a government setting) involving the use of a computer or any com-
bination of education and experience which provides a demonstrated ability to perform the duties of the position. 

 CPA or CPA track a plus, but not required. 
 Public accounting experience a plus, but not required. 
 Strong technical tax skills and analytic capabilities. 
 Demonstrated proficiency with Microsoft Products Suite including ease using Excel and manipulating 

workbook. 
 
SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 

None. 

TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT USED 



Accounting Assistant, Finance 4

Computer, calculator, typewriter, copy machine and other standard office equipment, spreadsheet, and word pro-
cessing applications software. 

PHYSICAL AND MENTAL DEMANDS 

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully 
perform the essential functions of this job.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

 While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit and talk and listen. 
 Must be able to sit at a desk or stand and work continuously for extended periods of time and occasionally 

required to walk. 
 Ability to use hands to finger, handle or feel objects, tools, or controls. 
 The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 10 pounds. 
 Specific vision abilities required for this job include close vision and the ability to adjust focus. 
 Must be able to read and interpret government regulations as they pertain to tax collections and be able to ef-

fectively present information and respond to questions from management and the general public. 
 Must be able to work under stress from demanding deadlines and changing priorities and conditions. 
 Must show willingness and flexibility for occasional overtime work to fulfill business needs. 
 This position requires the ability to apply common sense understanding in carrying out instructions furnished 

in written or oral form and the ability to deal with problems including several concrete variables in standard-
ized situations.   

 
WORK ENVIRONMENT 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters while 
performing the essential functions of this job.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals 
with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 

The work is conducted in typical office working conditions with virtually no disagreeable features.  The noise 
level in the work environment is not generally quiet.  

GENERAL GUIDELINES 

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be performed.  
The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, re-
lated or a logical assignment to the position. 

EEO/AA Statement 

 In the Town of East Hartford, we don't just accept difference — we celebrate it, support it, and thrive on it for 
the benefit of our employees, residents, and community partners. The Town of East Hartford is proud to be 
an equal-opportunity workplace. 

 

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and employee and is 
subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. 



TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD 
 

740 Main Street  
East Hartford, Connecticut 06108 

 

MICHAEL P. WALSH 
MAYOR 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

TYRON HARRIS 
DIRECTOR 

OFFICE OF HUMAN 
RESOURCES 

 

(860) 291-7220 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

WWW.EASTHARTFORDCT.GOV 

December 8, 2023 
 
The Hon. Mayor Connor Martin 
740 Main Street 
East Hartford, CT  06108 
  
Re: Payroll Coordinator, Finance 
 
Dear Mr. Martin: 
 
Please see the attached job description for the Payroll Coordinator, Finance, with the new title of 
Payroll Manager. 
Our Chief Administrator Officer, Deputy Finance Director, and I have reviewed the job 
description and salary band from surrounding towns and suggest an upgrade in grade and revamp 
of the current job description based on the needs of East Hartford. I’ve highlighted our changes 
below. 

POSITION DEFINITION:  

The Payroll Manager is responsible for preparing and administrating the Town of East Hartford 
Payroll System for all town personnel. Responsible for the setup and maintenance of employees 
in the Tyler Munis system, including activation and termination, maintenance of dates (birth, hire, 
service, permanent and permanent), salary tables, deductions, pay codes, special payments 
(severance), and pay type including check or direct deposits. Responsible for maintenance of 
Employee Master and the accuracy thereof. Responsible for accurate and timely payrolls to Town 
personnel, including vacation, sick, and other accrued leave payouts. Responsible for maintaining 
the employee database and detailed history. Responsible for administering leave accruals and 
timely set-up or deactivation of employees in the Novatime system. 

GENERAL DUTIES:  

• Performs role independently with limited supervisor(s) verbal or written direction. • Plans and 
organizes work by federal and state laws, standard procedures, and general professional judgment 
• Demonstrates mastery of the complex payroll and accounting system for the Town of East 
Hartford. • Establishes priorities within work assignments. • Works in tandem with the 
Department of Human Resources. • Prepares employee payrolls by collective bargaining 
agreements for employees weekly, bi-weekly, and monthly. Prepares payrolls accurately and 
timely, including on-time payment of all town personnel with correct wage amounts and 
deductions. • Maintains Munis and Novatime (where applicable) Employee module to ensure pay 
codes, deductions, salary tables, accruals, and other items are accurately set up and reflect 
collective bargaining agreement provisions. • Ensures accurate transmittal of payments for 
payroll-related federal, state, FICA/Medicare, unemployment, 401a retirement contributions, 
457b retirement contributions, Health Savings Accounts, Flexible Spending Accounts, credit 
union wages, and other payroll payments. Ensures the accurate posting of transactions to 
employee accounts with various vendors. Follows up in a timely manner for any errors or 
unreconciled differences. 



ADDITIONAL DUTIES: .  

 • Prepares projections for retirement. • Prepares all retirement/termination payouts. Including 
Drop Plan for Police and Fire • Administrates worker's compensation payments and wage 
verification forms. • Processes wage increase. • Prepares and maintains account ledgers as 
needed. • Regularly updates payroll to reflect individual or group changes. • Assists in the 
implementation of new benefit plans. Administers changes in labor contracts, including salary 
increases, retro payments, and benefit changes. Assists in the preparation of W2s. Assists with 
budget to prepare salary budget projections / personal services. • Responds to inquiries from 
employee organizations, state or federal officials, and representatives of insurance carriers.  

SUPERVISED BY: Receives general supervision from the Director of Finance, Deputy Finance 
Director and Assistant Director of Finance 

Following CSEA/SEIU LOCAL NO. 2001, ARTICLE VIII 8.7, to be considered for a change in 
pay grade, an employee must show that he/she is: (a) performing duties in a competent manner 
that are significantly different from the duties of his/her current classification, and (b) the change 
in his/her duties are so substantial that the position in question is of a different classification than 
his/her current classification. Therefore, I recommend that this position be referred to the Town 
Council for consideration of a pay grade change and title change.  

I have created the attached description based on the responsibilities. 
 
Therefore, I recommend that this position be referred to the Town Council for consideration. 
 
Tyron V. Harris 
 
Human Resources Director 

Customer Service. Collaboration. Communication. 



   

 

   

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Footer

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD 
 
 

 
TITLE:    Payroll Coordinator Manager  GRADE: 10 1312 

 
DEPARTMENT: Finance     DATE: July 1, 1987 2023 

December 1st 2023 
 

 
 
POSITION DEFINITION: 
 

The Payroll AdministratorManager is responsible for the Ppreparationes and 
administration of the Town of East Hartford Payroll System for ers a payroll system for all 
town personnel. The typica job duties for this position include but are not limited 
toResponsible for the set up and maintenance of employees in the Tyler Munis system to 
include activation and termination, maintenance of dates (birth, hire, service, permanent 
and permanent), salary tables, deductions, pay codes, special payments (severance), 
pay type including check or direct deposits. Responsible for maintenance of Employee 
Master and the accuracy thereof. Responsible for accurate and timely payrolls to Town 
personnel, including vacation, sick and other accrued leave payouts.  level tables to 
include direct deposits, union benefits, deductions and dues, and other general 
deductions. Responsible for processing and validation of special payments such as 
severance, stock options, commissions, FLSA overtime,  
Responsible for maintaining the employee database and detailed history. Responsible for 
runningadministering leave accruals and timely set-up or deactivation of employees in the 
Novatime system. 
Responsible for country specific set up and maintenance based on role 
Responsible for timely weekly payment of the payroll federal, state, FICA/Medicare, 
unemployment (quarterly), 401a retirement contributions, 457b retirement contributions, 
Health Savings Accounts, Flexible Spending Accounts, credit union wages, and other 
payroll payments. Responsible for accurate processing of Workers compensation related 
payments to ensure accurate W-2 statements. Responsible for preparing the Town’s 941 
quarterly Tax Return and calendar year end reporting requirements. 
 
Administers Automated Clearing House banking activities, (Electronic Funds Transfers 
(EFT), rejects, recalls, stop payments) related to payroll. 
Responds to inquiries from employees and external customers. 
Responsible for processing manual payments for new hires, leave of absence time entry 
corrections, terminations, and more while ensuring federal, state and local taxes, pre and 
post-tax deductions, and wage assignments are properly withheld. 
Assist employees with Workday self-service functions for direct deposit, retirement and 
tax election changes 
Resolve timekeeping system access issues, prepare and validate time entry exception 
reports and process corrections as needed 
Review daily maintenance and on-cycle payroll validation reports 

Commented [GU1]:    PAYROLL   JUNE/JULY 2023 TO 

DO LIST            FINALIZE H S A BANK EMPLOYER 

CONTRIBUTION FILE    SUBMIT TO H S A ON THURS 

6/27    WIRE TO H S A BANK ON 7/1      MON 7/1   

PROCESS REG PAYROLL            AS SOON AS 

PAYROLL UPDATE IS COMPLETE   TUES 7/2   WAGE 

UPDATES      NEW SALARY TABLES POLICE T02   

UPDATE POLICE WAGES   UPDATE POLICE FLAT 

RATE WAGES AND 751 TPF RATES        SEE LIST-

UPDATE PAY MASTER AND JOB PAYS      NEW 

SALARY TABLES FIRE T04   UPDATE FIRE WAGES   

UPDATE FIRE FLAT RATE WAGES - SEE LIST      NEW 

SALARY TABLES 818 SUPERVISOR T05   UPDATE 

WAGES   **** CHECK KEN SAYERS, STEVE 

FORAN****      NEW SALARY TABLES DISPATCH T10   

UPDATE WAGES   ****WATCH MIDNITE 

DIFFERENTIAL AND OT RATE ****       NEW SALARY 

TABLES PW 1174 T03   UPDATE WAGES           NEW 

SALARY TABLE NON UNION T06/T07      PROCESS 

NON UNION/WIC OTHER CHANGE PAFS      NEW 

CSEA SALARY TABLES T01   UPDATE WAGES - 

WATCH PART TIMERS   PROCESS CSEA STEP 

CHANGE PAFS      RUN EXCEL TIMESHEETS WHEN 

RATES COMPLETE      WED 7/5   DEDUCTION 

UPDATES      FLEXIBLE SPENDING CHANGES   

EMPLOYEE HDHP H S A BANK CHANGES   PREPAID 

VACATION CHANGES DISPATCH AMOUNTS   

PREPAID VACATION CHANGES NON UN/ PW      

PENSION MAX TO STOP    GENERAL EMPLOYEE 

PENSION TO 9% 7/1/19 (NA IN FY24)   POLICE NEW 

OPEB (NA IN FY24)      HEALTH INSURANCE   

UPDATE DEDUCTION MASTER   UPDATE 

EMPLOYEES DEDUCTIONS      DIRECTORS DEFER 

COMP CHANGES?       AFTER GENERATE PAYROLL -    

INPUT INTO MUNIS - EMPLOYER HDHP H S A 

AMOUNTS  

Field Code Changed

Formatted: Superscript

file:///C:/Users/mmccaw/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/amyers/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/WAGES%20CHARTS/LOCAL%20760%20(2007-2008).xls


   

 

Payroll Coordinator, Finance 2 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

Prepare employee payroll historical information for outside agencies and internal 
management 
Process voluntary deduction adjustments, and prepares related state and federal payroll 
information reports. Responsible for weekly input, earnings adjustments, classification 
changes , deductions reporting, general account distribution and all payroll related 
management systems reporting. 
 
GENERAL DUTIES: 
 

 Performs role independently with limited Receives oral or written direction from 
supervisor(s). 

 Plans and organizes work in accordance with federal and state laws, standard 
procedures and general professional judgement according to standard procedures. 

 Demonstrates mastery of the complex payroll and accounting system for the Town of 
East Hartford. 

 Establishes priorities within work assignment. 

 Works in tandem with Department of Human Resources. 

 Prepares employee payrolls in accordance with collective bargaining agreements for 
employees on a weekly, bi-weekly, and monthly basis. Prepares payrolls accurately 
and timely, including on-time payment of all town personnel with correct wage 
amounts and deductions. 

 Maintains Munis and Novatime (where applicable) Employee module to ensure pay 
codes, deductions, salary tables, accruals, and other items are accurately set-up and 
reflect collective bargaining agreement provisions. 

 Ensures accurate transmittal of payments for payroll related federal, state, 
FICA/Medicare, unemployment, 401a retirement contributions, 457b retirement 
contributions, Health Savings Accounts, Flexible Spending Accounts, credit union 
wages, and other payroll payments. Ensures the accurate posting of transactions to 
employee accounts with various vendors. Follows-up timely for any errors or 
unreconciled differences.  

 Ensures payroll journal entries are recorded within the payroll week. Resolves issues 
in a timely manner. 

 Maintains the employee database and detail history. 

 Receives and reviews time sheets from units. Departments  for accuracy and 
completeness. Ensures accurate posting to the general ledger organization and 
accounts. 

 Performs journal entries at month end timely to record expenses in various grants and 
ensure accurate reporting to grantors. 

 Performs calculating, posting, and verifying duties to obtain financial data for payroll 
deductions, including withholding taxes, social security, retirement, group 
insurancesinsurance, union dues, and other payments. 

 Prepares and transmits payroll information for processing into an automated payroll 
system.  

 Receives and reconciles payroll register.  

 Receives payroll checks , reviews for accuracy , and distributes to employees. 

 Posts payments and prepares monthly and annual payments vouchers for deductions 
to charitable, federalpayment vouchers for deductions to charitable, federal, and state 
governments, unions, and various carriers. 



   

 

Payroll Coordinator, Finance 3 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

 Prepares monthly, quarterly, and annual statistical and narrative reports for 
withholding taxes, social security, payments payments, and town and state retirement 
programs. 

 Projects payroll and related benefit cost figures for budget-making, cost control, and 
planning purposes. 

 Prepares regular statistical and narrative reports for the supervisor upon request.  

 Reports work accomplished to supervisor.  

 Prepares and process longevity, fire holiday and police holiday payments. 

 Ensures all Performanceersonnel Action Forms are recordinged, indexed and stored 
in the Munis and central file.. 

 Prepares analysis and journal entry for year-end payroll accrual. 

 Prepares the Town’s 941 quarterly Tax Return and calendar year end reporting 
requirements. 

  

 Respond to routine inquiries concerning payroll processing, deductions and earnings 

 Maintains Sick / Vacation time. 

 Maintains 457s and 401a retirement processing.  
 Stays up-to-date with changes in tax regulations and labor laws. 

 Assists with policy development and enforcement. 

 Generates and analyzes payroll-related metrics and statistics. 

 Assists with year-end payroll reconciliation and reporting. 

 Performs fiscal year end / start tasks inlcuding Munis pay master, job pays, wage rates, 
overtime rates (incl Fire), differentials, deduction updates, vacation and sick leave changes, 
pension max to stop, health insurance updates, Directors deferred compensation changes, 
employer HSA / HDHP amounts. 

  
 Respond to any unemployment claimspayment issues. 

 Process and Administer Wage garnishments. 

 Maintain unemployment payments and reports. 

 Administrate Prepaid Vacation 
 File 1094C and 1095C filings for ACA 

 Maintains confidentiality of personnel matters. 
  

 
 
ADDITIONAL DUTIES: 

 

 Prepares federal income tax checks and gross payroll and expense checks for  
      Board of Education. 

Process and Administrate Wage garnishments. 
Maintain unemployment payments and reports. 
Administrate Military Buy Backs 
Administrate Prepaid Vacation 
 File 1094C and 1095C filings for ACA 

  

 Prepares projections for retirement. 

 Prepares all retirement / termination payouts. Including Drop Plan for Police and Fire  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Tab stops:  0.25", Left +

Not at  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25", Space Before:  Auto,

After:  Auto, Pattern: Clear (White)

Formatted: Justified, Tab stops:  0.25", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.25" +

Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.25" +

Indent at:  0.5"



   

 

Payroll Coordinator, Finance 4 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

 Completes workers compensation and wage verification forms. Administrates workers 
compensation payments and wage verification forms. 

 Processes wage attachments increase. 

 Prepares and maintains account ledgers as needed. 

 Regularly updates payroll to reflect individual or group changes. 

 Assists in the implementation of new benefit plans. 
Administers changes in labor contracts including salary increases, retro payments, 
including salary increases, retro payments, and benefit changes. 
assists in preparation of W2s. 

 Assists with Budget to prepare salary budget projections / prepares personal services. 

 Responds to inquiries from employee organizations, state or federal officials, and    
      representatives of insurance carriers. 
 
 
SUPERVISED BY: 
 

Receives general supervision from the Director of Finance, Deputy Finance Director and 
Assistant Director of Finance. 
  
 
QUALIFICATIONS PROFILE: 
 

 The skills and knowledge required would generally be acquired with an Associate’s  
      Degree In Businessin business Administration, Accounting, or some closely related 
field with    
      three years of increasingly responsible office accounting or bookkeeping   
      experience.    

 5+ years of solid multi-state payroll and benefits rules, regulations and practices per IRS and 
basic accounting experience. 

 Must have strong Mathematical and Accounting aptitude 

 Relevant work experience in payroll administration, bookkeeping, or office accounting  
      may be substituted for college training on a year for yearyear-for-year basis. 

 Thorough knowledge of basic bookkeeping, payroll and record keeping, and record-
keeping procedures.  

 Ability to perform complex arithmetic computations.  

 Ability to complete narrative and statistical reports. 

 Ability to acquire basic knowledge of data processing applications.  

 Ability to learn automated payroll system.  

 Ability to handle heavy workload on a daily basis 

 Must be deadline oriented with the ability to multi-task 

 Proficient/intermediate use of Microsoft Excel and Word 

 Knowledge of payroll processes including data entry, pay calculations, tax and 
benefits 

 Ability to learn payroll provisions of Union Contracts 

 Strong work ethic and ability to work well in a team environment 

 Completion of  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0", Tab stops: 

0", List tab

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not

at  2.13"

Formatted: Left, Space Before:  Auto, After:  Auto,

Outline numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: Bullet

+ Aligned at:  0.25" + Tab after:  0.5" + Indent at:  0.5",

Pattern: Clear (White)

Formatted: Font: (Default) Helvetica, 10.5 pt, Font

color: Custom Color(RGB(45,45,45))



   

 

Payroll Coordinator, Finance 5 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

  
 
 
LICENSE OR CERTIFICATE: 
 
Certified Payroll Professional (CPP)-Optional 

Not applicable. 
EEO/AA Statement 

 In the Town of East Hartford, we don't just accept difference — we celebrate it, support it, 

and thrive on it for the benefit of our employees, residents, and community partners. The 

Town of East Hartford is proud to be an equal-opportunity workplace. 

EEO/AA Statement 

 In the Town of East Hartford, we don't just accept difference — we celebrate it, support it, 

and thrive on it for the benefit of our employees, residents, and community partners. The 

Town of East Hartford is proud to be an equal-opportunity workplace. 

 

 

 
 
Note:  The above description is illustrative of tasks and responsibilities.  It is not  
            meant to be all-inclusive of every task or responsibility.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Responsibilities for payroll processor 
Responsible for set up and maintenance of employee level tables to include direct 
deposit, union benefits/deductions and dues, expatriate hypo tax, and other 
general deductions such as auto use and computer loans, Responsible for 
processing and validation of special payments such as severance, stock options, 
commissions, FLSA overtime, Responsible for running leave accruals 
Responsible for country specific set up and maintenance based on role 
Responsible for Automated Clearing House banking activities, (Electronic Funds 
Transfers (EFT), rejects, recalls, stop payments) 
Responds to inquiries from employees and external customers 
Responsible for processing manual payments for new hires, leave of absence time 
entry corrections, terminations, and more while ensuring federal, state and local 
taxes, pre and post-tax deductions, and wage assignments are properly withheld 

Formatted: Tab stops:  0.25", Left + Not at  0.5"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt



   

 

Payroll Coordinator, Finance 6 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

Assist employees with Workday self-service functions for direct deposit and tax 
election changes 
Resolve timekeeping system access issues, prepare and validate time entry 
exception reports and process corrections as needed 
Review daily maintenance and on-cycle payroll validation reports 
Prepare employee payroll historical information for outside agencies and internal 
management 
Process voluntary deduction adjustments 
Prepare and/or update the various changes for the employee pay affecting payroll 
(contract modifications, personal details, ) on a monthly basis according to 
company policy and proper approval level 
Prepare the monthly payroll for approval 
Prepare and submit tax and third party payments 
Provide information to the Business for month end journals and internal reporting 
Accurately process payroll for all employees including timesheet verification, tax 
setup and garnishments 
Process employee changes including new hires, reviews, status changes, 
transfers and terminations 
Support offices and field management with requests regarding financial or 
personal needs 
Field requests from field, operations, and home office departments for data housed 
in Ultipro 
Record and track 90 day and annual reviews 
Track vacation for both hourly and salary employees 
 
 

 
Qualifications for payroll processor 

Must have strong Mathematical and Accounting aptitude 
Ability to handle heavy workload on a daily basis 
Must be deadline oriented with the ability to multi-task 
Human Resources experience and/or Human Resources degree/coursework 
5+ years of payroll experience in processing payroll, data entry, taxes (multi-state), 
garnishments, and year-end processing 
Education – 4 years college degree or 10 years’ experience and some college course 
work 
Associates degree or comparable knowledge in payroll-related field 
3+ years payroll processing experience with automated systems, (ADP, Ceridian, 
Paychecks, Pro Business, ) including report writing tools 
Strong work ethic and ability to work well in a team environment 
Accounting/Finance/Business Degree or related discipline is a must 
Good knowledge of French is preferred 
Advanced competency with Excel and Microsoft Office 
Data entry and audit of employee pay data, direct deposit, W4, general deduction, 
additional pay entry 
PeopleSoft Employee Pay Data processes, including general deductions, employee 
taxes and tax distribution and additional pay processing, Paysheet Entry and Reporting 
/ Query tools 
Proficient use of Microsoft Excel and Word 

Formatted: Font: Bold



   

 

Payroll Coordinator, Finance 7 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

Knowledge of payroll processes including data entry, pay calculations, tax and benefits 
Working knowledge of Union Contracts 
Experience in processing Payroll using Oracle PeopleSoft System 
 

 Formatted: Centered



  

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

 

DATE:   December 26, 2023 

TO:   Richard F. Kehoe, Chair 

FROM:   Connor S. Martin, Mayor 

RE:   REFERRAL: Personnel and Pensions Subcommittees   

 

Please see a series of attached job descriptions for a variety of positions within several departments, 

submitted by HR Director Tyron Harris.   

Positions are 

 Assistant Director of Parks and Rec 

 Administrative Secretary II in the Fire Department  

 Administrative Secretary III, Public Works  

 

Please place this item on the Town Council agenda for the January 2, 2024 meeting for referral to the 

Personnel and Pensions Subcommittee.  

 
C: T. Harris, HR Director 
  
  
               

 



TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD 
 

740 Main Street  
East Hartford, Connecticut 06108 

 

MICHAEL P. WALSH 
MAYOR 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

TYRON HARRIS 
DIRECTOR 

OFFICE OF HUMAN 
RESOURCES 

 

(860) 291-7220 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

WWW.EASTHARTFORDCT.GOV 

 December 11, 2023 
 
The Hon. Mayor Connor Martin 
740 Main Street 
East Hartford, CT  06108 
  
Re: Administrative Secretary II  
 
Dear Mr. Martin: 
 
Please see the attached job description for the Administrative Secretary II in the Fire department 
with a new title Fire Marshal Administrative Operations Coordinator.  
 
Our Fire Chief and myself have reviewed the job description and salary band from surrounding 
towns Fire departments and suggest an upgrade in grade and revamp of the current job 
description based on the needs of East Hartford. I’ve highlighted our changes below. 
 
POSITION DEFINITION: 
 
Provides administrative assistance to the Fire Marshal’s Office by performing a wide range of 
professional and technical duties leading to the effective operation of the division; and performs 
related work as required. Work is performed under general supervision where considerable 
independence is required.  
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS: 

 Advises division on budget problems, policies, and procedures and assists in maintaining 
proper budgetary controls. At the direction of the Division Head prepares the division 
budget reports and summaries. 

 Acts as the primary administrative support staff to the Division Head. Receives 
assignments, tasks, duties, and functions from the Division Head. 

 Handles information requests from the public and other agencies. 

 Assists the division in implementing improvements, and in overall administration of the 
division. 

 Prepares and develops statistical reports, spreadsheets, graphs, and related materials to 
track permits, fees collected, division operating budget, etc. 

 Assists in the preparation of special studies on programs and procedures. 

 Reviews and answers routine daily correspondence. 

 Assists in performing routine professional and technical support of the online permitting 
system and fire and inspection systems. 

 Tracks and assigns permits to respective parties. 

 Researches information on various subjects related to Fire safety and prevention. 

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES: 

 Knowledge of the principles and practices of modern public administration, preferably as 
it relates to local government. 



 Knowledge of Municipal, State, and Federal Government powers and purpose. 

 Knowledge of the basic principles of public financial management and statistical 
techniques. 

 Comprehensive working knowledge of desktop products, word processors, desktop 
database managers, and electronic spreadsheets. 

JOB QUALIFICATIONS: 
 The required skills and knowledge would generally be acquired with an Associate Degree 

in Business Administration, Accounting, or a closely related field of study, and two years 
of increasingly responsible administrative office management experience. 

The Administrative Secretary II job description has not been updated since 1987, and the role has 
evolved.  Following CSEA/SEIU LOCAL NO. 2001, ARTICLE VIII 8.7, to be considered for a 
change in pay grade, an employee must show that he/she is: (a) performing duties in a competent 
manner that are significantly different from the duties of his/her current classification, and (b) the 
change in his/her duties are so substantial that the position in question is of a different 
classification than his/her current classification. Therefore, I recommend that this position is 
referred to Town Council for consideration of a pay grade change and title change.  

 
I have created the attached description based on the responsibilities. 
 
Therefore, I recommend that this position be referred to the Town Council for consideration. 
 
Tyron V. Harris 
 
Human Resources Director 

Customer Service. Collaboration. Communication. 



 
 

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD 
 
 
TITLE:   Fire Marshal Administrative Operations Coordinator     
Administrative Secretary II   GRADE:  48 
 
DEPARTMENT: As Assigned Fire       DATE:
 07/01/8710/2023 
 
 
 
POSITION DEFINITION: 
 
Provides administrative assistance to the Fire Marshal’s Office by performing a wide 
range of professional and technical duties leading to the effective operation of the division; 
and performs related work as required. Work is performed under general supervision 
where considerable independence is required.  
Performs secretarial and administrative work of a complex, confidential and responsible 
nature in a major department. 
 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED; 
 
Receives general supervision from the Fire Marshal.   
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS: 
GENERAL DUTIES: 
 

 Advises division on budget problems, policies, and procedures and assists in 
maintaining proper budgetary controls. At the direction of the Division Head 
prepares the division budget reports and summaries. 

 Acts as the primary administrative support staff to the Division Head. Receives 
assignments, tasks, duties, and functions from the Division Head. 

 Handles information requests from the public and other agencies. 
 Assists the division in implementing improvements, and in overall administration 

of the division. 
 Prepares and develops statistical reports, spreadsheets, graphs, and related 

materials in order to track permits, fees collected, division operating budget, etc. 
 Assists in the preparation of special studies on programs and procedures. 
 Reviews and answers routine daily correspondence. 
 Assists in the performance of routine professional and technical support of the 

online permitting system as well as fire and inspection systems. 
 Tracks and assigns permits to respective parties. 
 Researches information on a variety of subjects related to Fire safety and 

prevention. 
 Serves as the liaison to the IT department for setting up office technology and 

onboarding new staff. 
 Receives and records fees as well as prepares transmittal deposit forms. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Italic

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Italic

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Italic

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial



Administrative Secretary II, Unassigned 2

 Assists other Division support staff as needed. 
 Meets the public and provides information on division operations. 
 Maintains central inventory of division supplies. Contacts vendors for price 

quotes and orders supplies as needed. 
 Assists in Public Education by coordinating all events and ensuring division 

presence.  
 Assists in the administration of the Smoke and CO program by keeping track of 

inventory and installation. Schedules installations and inspections as needed. 
 Maintains the schedule of the Fire Marshal and staff. Schedules both permit-related 

and fire safety inspections.Receives oral and written instructions from a department 
head. 

 Plans and organizes work according to established office or standard 
procedures. 

 Determines priority of work tasks. 

 Assigns work to permanent and temporary clerical staff. 
 Relieves supervisor of detail work. 

 Provides general information to public on department or town services, including 
regulatory, cultural, social, or recreational programs. 

 Provides technical or regulatory information to public and assists public in 
completing applications or in understanding regulations.   

 Observes strict confidentiality in establishing and maintaining restricted files and 
records. 

 Arranges meetings and schedules appointments for supervisor, and coordinates 
scheduling of field personnel where applicable. 

 Transmits and explains supervisor’s directions to proper persons, and follow up 
for compliance, completeness, and conformance with deadlines. 

 Compiles and coordinates data for action by supervisor. 

 Types and transcribes letters, reports, and meeting minutes from rough draft, 
shorthand notes, or transcription equipment.  
 Composes and types routing correspondence and reports.  

 Screens telephone calls or greets visitors, ascertains nature of business, and 
refers to appropriate office as possible. 

 Types statistical and narrative reports of some complexity. 

 Performs special assignments, studies, and routine administrative functions as 
directed.   

 Assists in the preparation of department budget by compiling information and 
typing budget proposals. 

 Receives and records fees. 

 Provides secretarial services to departmental staff as required. 
 Reports work accomplished to supervisor.  
 

 
 
 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES: 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Bulleted + Level: 1 +
Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5", Tab stops: Not at 
0.25"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left,  No bullets or
numbering, Tab stops: Not at  0.25"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Tab stops: Not at  0.25"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial



Administrative Secretary II, Unassigned 3

 Knowledge of the principles and practices of modern public administration, 
preferably as it relates to local government. 

 Knowledge of Municipal, State, and Federal Government powers and purpose. 
 Knowledge of the basic principles of public financial management and statistical 

techniques. 
 Comprehensive working knowledge of desktop products, word processors, 

desktop database managers, and electronic spreadsheets. 
 Ability to produce written documents with clearly organized thoughts using 

proper sentence construction, punctuation, and grammar. 
 Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with municipal 

officials, department directors, employees, and the general public. 
 Ability to learn operational objectives, methods, and procedures of the Division. 
 Ability to analyze and interpret policies and procedures. 
 Ability to make decisions in accordance with rules, regulations, and ordinances, 

covering the department. 
 Ability to establish and maintain highly effective working relationships with 

employees, managers, elected and appointed officials, staff, community and 
business leaders, the media and others encountered in the course of work. 

ADDITIONAL DUTIES: 
 
 Develops and maintains confidential and complex records and files.   
 Maintains purchasing, personnel, or other administrative records.  
 
SUPERVISED BY; 
 
 Receives general supervision from a department head.   
   
 
QUALIFICATIONS PROFILE: 
 
 The skills and knowledge required would generally be acquired with a high school 

education with course work in Business English, and Commercial Arithmetic with three 
years of increasingly responsible secretarial or office administrative work.   

 Ability to acquire working knowledge of regulations and legal requirements of assigned 
department activities.   

 Ability to type with speed and accuracy, from shorthand notes or dictation equipment 
and long hand notes.  

 Ability to accurately process large amount of paperwork.  
 Ability to maintain complex files and record systems.  
 Ability to perform basic mathematical calculations. 
 Ability to compose correspondence and reports.  
 Ability to collect and organize data. 
 Ability to assist public in properly completing applications. 
 Ability to relate positively to staff members, city officials, and the general public. 
 Ability to transmit information to public in a clear and concise manner. 
 Ability to operate office equipment, and to learn to operate data and word processing 

equipment.   
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at
 0.5"



Administrative Secretary II, Unassigned 4

 
LICENSE OR CERTIFICATE: 
 
Not applicable.  
 
PHYSICAL AND MENTAL EFFORTS AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS: 

 Works in an office setting subject to continuous interruptions and background 
noise. 

 Includes exposure to video display terminals on a daily basis. 
 Must be able to work under stress from demanding deadlines and changing 

priorities and conditions. 
 Ability to operate equipment requiring eye and hand coordination. 
 Work requires the ability to push, lift, pull, and carry up to 20 pounds.   
 A public address system is used in the Fire Department and this position requires 

the ability to work with the noise levels associated with a working fire station. 
 
 
JOB QUALIFICATIONS: 
 
The required skills and knowledge would generally be acquired with an Associate Degree 
in Business Administration, Accounting, or a closely related field of study, and two years 
of increasingly responsible administrative office management experience. 
 
EEO/AA Statement 

 In the Town of East Hartford, we don't just accept difference — we celebrate it, support it, 
and thrive on it for the benefit of our employees, residents, and community partners. The 
Town of East Hartford is proud to be an equal-opportunity workplace. 

 
 
Note: The above is illustrative of tasks and responsibilities. It is not meant to be    
           all-inclusive of every task or responsibility.  
 

 
 

 

Formatted: Tab stops: Not at  0.25" +  0.31"



TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD 
 

740 Main Street  
East Hartford, Connecticut 06108 

 

MICHAEL P. WALSH 
MAYOR 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

TYRON HARRIS 
DIRECTOR 

OFFICE OF HUMAN 
RESOURCES 

 

(860) 291-7220 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

WWW.EASTHARTFORDCT.GOV 

December 11, 2023 
 
The Hon. Mayor Connor Martin 
740 Main Street 
East Hartford, CT  06108 
  
Re: Administrative Secretary III Public Works 
 
Dear Mr. Martin: 
 
Please see the attached job description for the Administrative Secretary III, Public Works. 
 
Our Public Works Director and I have reviewed the job description and salary band from 
surrounding towns and suggest an upgrade in grade and revamp of the current job description 
based on the needs of East Hartford. I’ve highlighted our changes below. 
 
POSITION DEFINITION: 
 
Performs secretarial and administrative work of a complex, confidential, and responsible nature in 
a major department. Exercises judgment in selecting and applying established procedures correctly 
and determining when to refer situations. Requires the ability to make complex decisions related to 
administrative support functions. Handles a variety of general and confidential inquiries from 
citizens and employees; assists in coordinating responses. 
 
GENERAL DUTIES: 
 Prepares Highway contract renewals for snow plowing. 
 Input, monitor, and follow all catch basins, potholes, street sweeping, and other highway-

related claims tracking through the Q-Alert system. 
 Submit mailbox complaints and provide refunds to residents as necessary 
 Assists in preparing department budget by compiling information and typing budget proposals. 
 Types and transcribes letters, reports, and meeting minutes from rough drafts, shorthand notes, 

or transcription equipment. 
 Provides secretarial services to assigned boards or commissions as required. 
 Tracks training for all 1174 members. Enters all certificates and specialized training as needed. 

Coordinates training with OSHA and Risk Management.  
 Composes and types routine correspondence and reports. 
 Schedules evictions daily with Marshal’s. Holds Town auctions twice a month for evicted 

parties. Keeps track of monies for all evictions and auctions. 
 Communicates with emergency radio with police dispatch daily (examples) 
 Dispatches utility for dead animals 
 Stop signs for automobile accidents 
QUALIFICATIONS PROFILE: 
 Education: High school graduate or equivalent, preferably with business/secretarial training 

beyond high school. Skills and Experience: Three or more years of related experience. 
Secretarial/office experience preferred. Computer skills and ability to pass standard typing test 
required. May be tested on appropriate computer skills as required. Keyboarding speed (wpm) 



may be required as appropriate to job duties. Shorthand and Dictaphone experience may be 
required. 

Following CSEA/SEIU LOCAL NO. 2001, ARTICLE VIII 8.7, to be considered for a change in 
pay grade, an employee must show that he/she is: (a) performing duties in a competent manner 
that are significantly different from the duties of their current classification and (b) the change in 
their duties are so substantial that the position in question is of a different classification than their 
current classification. Therefore, I recommend that this position be referred to the Town Council 
for consideration of a pay grade change.  

I have created the attached description based on the responsibilities. 
 
Therefore, I recommend that this position be referred to the Town Council for consideration. 
 
Tyron V. Harris 
 
Human Resources Director 

Customer Service. Collaboration. Communication. 



 
 

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD 
 
 
TITLE:  Administrative Secretary III  Public Works  GRADE:6 to 
7       6 
 
DEPARTMENT: As AssignedPublic Works     DATE:
 07/01/87 1/28/2024 
 
 
 
POSITION DEFINITION: 
 
Performs secretarial and administrative work of a complex, confidential, and responsible 
nature in a major department. Exercises judgment in selecting and applying established 
procedures correctly, and in  and determining when to refer situations. Requires the ability to 
make complex decisions related to administrative support functions. Handles a variety of general 
and confidential inquiries from citizens and employees; assists in coordinating responses. 
 
GENERAL DUTIES: 
 
 Receives oral and written instructions from a department head. 
 Plans and organizes work according to established office or standard procedures. 
 Determines priority of work tasks. 
 Assigns work to clerical staff or to temporary staff. 
 Relieves supervisor of office administrative detail work. 
 Compiles and coordinates data for action by supervisor. 
 Prepares statistical and narrative reports of some complexity.  
 Transmits and explains supervisor’s directions to proper persons, and follows up to 

assure compliance, completeness and follow up to ensure compliance, 
completeness, and conformance with deadlines. 

 Prepares Highway contract renewals for snow plowing. 
 Input, monitor and follow all catch basin, pothole, street sweeping and other highway 

related, and follow all catch basin, pothole, street sweeping, and other highway-
related claims tracking through , and follow all catch basins, potholes, street 
sweeping, and other highway-related claims tracking through the Q-Alert system. 

 Submit mailbox complaints and provide refunds to residents as necessary 
 Assists in the preparation of department budget by compiling information, preparing 

department budget by gathering information, 
 Assisted in preparing the department budget by compiling information and typing 

budget proposals. 
 Types and transcribes letters, reports, and meeting minutes from rough draftdrafts, 

shorthand notes, or transcription equipment. 
 Provides secretarial services to assigned boards or commissions as required. 
 Tracks training for all 1174 members. Enters all certificates and specialized training 

as needed. Coordinates training with OSHA and Risk Management.,  
 Composes and types routine correspondence and reports. 



Administrative Secretary III, Unassigned 2

 Schedules evictions on a daily basis with Marshal’sbasis with Marshal. Holds Town 
auctions twice a month for evicted parties. Keeps track of monies for all evictions 
and auctions. 

 Communicates with emergency radio with police dispatch on a daily basisbasis 
(examples) 

 Dispatches utility for dead animals 
 Stop signs for automobile accidents 
 Traffic light outages 
 Dispatches salt truck for emergency areas during winter storms, inclement weather 

and raodroad trucks for emergency areas during winter storms, inclement weather, 
and road trucks for emergency areas during winter storms, inclement weather, and 
road spills. 

 Downed trees and limbs,  
 Screens telephone calls or greets visitors, ascertains nature of business, and refers 

to appropriate office/person as possible. 
 Arranges meetings and schedules appointments for Arrange meetings and schedule 

appointments for the supervisor. 
 Maintains the running record of line item accounts. 
 Prepares and process processes purchase orders. 
 Performs special assignments, studies, and routine administrative functions as 

directed. 
 Meets the public and provides information on subjects such as department or town 

services. 
 Responsible for processing work orders for specific town events 
 Staff backup support for Payroll for 5 Departments, street light entering. Cemetery 

deeds, and waste services support. 
 Assists    with updating of manuals, handbooksmanuals, handbooks, and brochures. 
 Works at Municipal events to educate hundreds of residents on how to appropriately 

recycle thus acquiring a reduction in costs for the Townmunicipal events to inform 
hundreds of residents on how to recycle, thus reducing costs for the town 
appropriately. 

 Receives and records fees. 
 Performs related bookkeeping functions.  
 Reports work accomplished to supervisor.  
 
 
 
 
 
ADDITIONAL DUTIES: 
 
 
 Organizes and prepares materials for publication such as administrative regulations,  
      position announcements, examination procedures, program guides, and activity  
      schedules. 
 Maintains inventory of office supplies, materials, and equipment. 
 Develops and maintains confidential and complex records and files. 
 Maintains department purchasing, personnel, or other administrative records.  
 



Administrative Secretary III, Unassigned 3

 
SUPERVISED BY; 
 
 Receives general supervision from a department head.Director of Public Works. 
 Receives assignments from and maintains close working relationships with the Public Works 

Director, Asst. Public Works Director and Public Works. Works independently under general 
supervision and the guidance of applicable federal, state and local statutes, regulations, town 
ordinances and codes, and departmental policies   

   
 
QUALIFICATIONS PROFILE: 
 
 The skills and knowledge required would generally be acquired with a high school 

education with course work in Business English, and Commercial Arithmetic with 
four years of progressively responsible secretarial or office administrative work, or in 
lieu thereof and Commercial Arithmetic with four years of progressively responsible 
secretarial or office administrative work, or in lieu thereof, an Associate’s degree in 
Secretarial Science and two years of progressively responsible secretarial or office 
administration work.   

 Education: High school graduate or equivalent, preferably with business/secretarial training 
beyond high school. Skills and Experience: Three or more years' years of related experience. 
secretarialSecretarial/office experience preferred. Computer skills and ability to pass standard 
typing test required. May be tested on appropriate computer skills as requiredneeded. 
Keyboarding speed (wpm) may be required as appropriate to job duties. Shorthand and/orand 
Dictaphone experience may be required. 

 Ability to type with speed and accuracy. 
 Ability to take minutes of meetings, correspondence and, reports, etc. in shorthand. 
 Ability to establish and maintain complex files and record systems.  
 Ability to work with a minimum of supervision. 
 Ability to compose clear and correct letters and reports. 
 Ability to efficiently schedule and coordinate meetings and events.  
 Ability to accurately process large amount amounts of paperwork. Accurately and 

efficiently. 
 Ability to supervise. 
 Ability to relate positively to those contacted.  
 Ability to learn to operate data and word processing equipment. 
 Ability to compile data as requested. 
 Ability to acquire a working knowledge of the functions and responsibilities of the 

department. 
 Ability to perform basic bookkeeping skills. 
 Ability to supervise clerical staff and operations. 
 
 
LICENSE OR CERTIFICATE: 
 

 Municipal or other government experience preferred.  
 Proficient in the use of computerized information systems: word processing, 

spreadsheets, computerized record keeping and file management applications including 
Microsoft Office required  

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.25" +
Indent at:  0.5"



Administrative Secretary III, Unassigned 4

Not applicable.  
 
EEO/AA Statement 

 In the Town of East Hartford, we don't just accept difference — we celebrate it, support it, 
and thrive on it for the benefit of our employees, residents, and community partners. The 
Town of East Hartford is proud to be an equal-opportunity workplace. 

 
 
Note: The above description is illustrative of tasks and responsibilities. It is not   
           meant to be all-inclusive of in every task or responsibility.  

 



TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD 
 

740 Main Street  
East Hartford, Connecticut 06108 

 

MICHAEL P. WALSH 
MAYOR 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

TYRON HARRIS 
DIRECTOR 

OFFICE OF HUMAN 
RESOURCES 

 

(860) 291-7220 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

WWW.EASTHARTFORDCT.GOV 

 December 11, 2023 
 
The Hon. Mayor Connor Martin 
740 Main Street 
East Hartford, CT  06108 
  
Re: Assistant Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
Dear Mr. Martin: 
 
Please see the attached job description for the Assistant Director of Parks and Recreation 
in the Health and Social Services division. We’ve taken functions from the Director of 
Parks and Recreation and included them in the new functions of the Assistant Director of 
Parks and Recreation. 
 
Our Assistant Director of Parks and Recreation, Director of Health and Human Services, 
and I have reviewed the job description and salary band from surrounding town 
departments and suggested an upgrade in grade and revamp of the current job description 
based on the needs of Parks and Recreation. I’ve highlighted our changes below. 
POSITION DEFINITION:    
 
Under the general supervision of the Director of Health and Social Services, provides 
administrative and professional supervision in the implementation of a variety of parks and 
recreation services, including recreation programs, special events, park projects, golf 
course programs, building and property administration, and construction projects.  
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS: 
 Develops fee schedules and projects revenues for budget-making. 
 Oversees work activities and implements controls to ensure cost-effective attainment 

of goals. 
 Develops near and long-range planning for programs. 
 Oversees analysis of computer equipment, software, and applications for increasing 

automation of Department processes, operating systems, and record-keeping. 
 Plans and implements technological advances as so determined. 
 Oversees the preparation of brochures, news releases, and other public relations 

materials 
 Plans, coordinates, and implements year-round seasonal programs, especially in camps, 

playgrounds, gymnasium activities, fitness programs, special events, and sports 
leagues. 

ADDITIONAL JOB FUNCTIONS: 
 
 Represents the Department in public meetings. 
 Participates in the selection of consulting services for Department projects. 
 Coordinates activities with public and private cultural and recreational organizations. 



 Speaks to individuals and groups to develop interest in recreation and promote 
department activities. 

 Actively participates in professional parks and recreation organizations to remain 
current on developments in the field. 

JOB QUALIFICATIONS AND LICENSING REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 Four years of progressively responsible experience in municipal or group recreation 

work, including at least two years in a supervisory role.   
 Credentialing as a Certified Leisure Professional is preferred 

The Assistant Director of Parks and Recreation job description has not been updated 
since 2001, and the role has evolved. 

I have created the attached description based on the responsibilities. 
 
Therefore, I recommend that this position be referred to the Town Council for 
consideration. 
 
Tyron V. Harris 
 
Human Resources Director 

Customer Service. Collaboration. Communication. 



TOWN OF  EAST HARTFORD 
 
 
TITLE:  Assistant Director of Parks and Recreation  LEVEL:    1081071 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Parks and Recreation    Date:    2/6/0111/13/2023 
 
 
POSITION DEFINITION:    
 
Under the general supervision of the Director of Health and Social ServicesParks and Recreation, 
provides administrative and professional supervision in the implementation of a variety of 
parks and recreation services including recreation programs, parks maintenance, golf course 
maintenance, building and property administration and construction projects. Assumes 
administrative responsibility of the Department in the temporary absence of the Director of 
Parks and Recreation. 
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS: 
 Plans, organizes and implements work according to project schedules and standard 

procedures. 
 Independently establishes priorities in regular duties. 
 Develops, coordinates and supervises community recreation, social and cultural programs; 

and assists the Director of Parks and Recreation in the planning and administration of the 
Department’s divisions, programs and activities. 

 Provides administrative and technical consultation and assistance to town department, 
boards and commissions. 

 ADD 
 Participates in near-term and long-range planning of the Department.  Formulates 

operating policies in concert with the Director.   
 Assists the Director in preparing annual budget recommendations. 
 Makes recommendations for fee schedules and projects revenues for budget-making. 
 ADD 
 Monitors work activities and implements controls to assure cost effective attainment of 

goals. 
 Assists with analysis of computer equipment, software and applications for increasing 

automation of Department processes, operating systems and record-keeping. 
 Plans and implements technological advances so determined. 
 ADD 
 Plans, coordinates and implements year-round seasonal programs, especially in the areas 

of camps, playgrounds, gymnasium activities, fitness programs add and sports leagues. 
 Reviews and evaluates recreational programs and parks maintenance and golf 

maintenance projects.  Oversees operations of the Community Cultural Center. ADD 
 Assists with the development and administration of contracts with Veterans Memorial 

Clubhouse Caretaker, Golf Course Professional, Golf Course Restaurant and Community 
Cultural Center facilitators. 

 Confers with architects, consultants, contractors and the general public on parks and 
recreation matters.  

 ADD 
 Prepares studies and makes reports on current and future projects and programs. 
 Assists with  bid procedures for services, supplies and materials. 

Commented [DS1]: 1071 

Commented [DS2]: 12/13/23 

Formatted: Left

Commented [DS3]: Health and Social Services 

Commented [DS4]: Delete – not relative 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 10 pt

Commented [DS5]: as well as social and cultural 
programs 

Commented [DS6]: Delete 

Commented [DS7]: Oversees work activities and 
implements controls to assure cost effective attainment 
of goals. 
 

Commented [DS8]: Develops near and long range 
planning for programs  
 

Commented [DS9]: Add as new line - Formulates 
operating policies for the Department 
 

Commented [DS10]: Supervises the preparation and 
administration of the departments operating budget 
and capital improvements budget. 
 

Commented [DS11]: Develops 

Commented [DS12]: Oversees analysis of computer 
equipment, software and applications for increasing 
automation of Department processes, operating 
systems and record-keeping. 
 

Formatted: Font color: Red

Commented [DS13]: Oversees 

Formatted: Font color: Red

Commented [DS14]: Oversees the preparation of 
brochures, news releases, and other pubic relation materials 

Commented [DS15]: Special Events 

Commented [DS16]: in coordination with the Building 
Maintenance Supervisor 

Commented [DS17]: Remove - Caretaker 

Commented [DS18]: Speaks on department matters 
to local civic and cultural organizations.  
 

Commented [DS19]: Oversees bid procedure for service, 
supplies and materials 



Assistant Director, Park & Rec. 2

 Hires, trains and provides indirect and direct supervision of full-time staff for parks 
maintenance, golf course maintenance and administrative divisions and hires, trains and 
provides indirect and direct supervision of part-time staff for parks, camps, playgrounds, 
gymnasiums and other programs. 

 Prepares regular narrative and statistical reports for the Mayor and the Town Council upon request 

 ADD 
 Assigns work to full-time and part-time staff. 
 Oversees training and development programs for Department employees. 
 Assists with the administration of collective bargaining agreements for Department. 
 Coordinates availability of athletic fields and facilities for league use. 
 Coordinates use and rental of facilities with the Board of Education. 
 Prepares public relations information. 
 Monitors recreation programs to assure proper operating, safety and supervision. 
 Evaluates employees and handles disciplinary action 

 ADD 
 Prepares specifications for materials, equipment, supplies and services for designated 

program areas. 
 Evaluates employees and handles disciplinary action. 
 Serves as hearing officer in grievances. 
 Reports progress on projects and goals attained to Director. 
 Assumes administrative responsibility of the Department in the temporary absence of the 

Director of Parks and Recreation. 
 Works closely with Parks Associate Director and Park Supervisors to assure effective 

programming, maintenance and upkeep of Park facilities 
  
 ADD 
 Works closely with Parks Associate Director and Supervisors with grant funding for park 

projects 
 ADD 
 Oversees the preparation of brochures, news releases, and other public relations 

materials.  
 
ADDITIONAL JOB FUNCTIONS: 
 
 Represents Department in public meetings. 
 Participates in selection of consulting services for Department projects. 
 Coordinates activities with public and private cultural and recreational organizations. 
 Speaks to individuals and groups to develop interest in recreation and promote department 

activities. 
 Participates in professional parks and recreation organizations to remain current on 

developments in the field. 
 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES: 
 
 Knowledge and skill in executing the principles and practices of municipal recreation and 

its administration, including planning, organizing, budgeting and evaluation. 
 Knowledge of laws and regulations governing municipal recreation. 
 Ability to assess community recreational needs and to initiate, organize and follow  through 

on recreation, rental property, parks and golf course maintenance programs and projects. 

Commented [DS20]: Delete and add , part-time, and 
seasonal staff 

Commented [DS21]: Prepares regular narrative and 
statistical reports for the Mayor and the Town Council upon 
request 

Commented [DS22]: and professional development 
opportunities 

Commented [DS23]: with the Town of East Hartford 
parks 

Commented [DS24]: Evaluates employees and 
handles disciplinary action 

Commented [DS25]: Delete 

Commented [DS26]: Delete 

Commented [DS27]: Works closely with Parks 
Associate Director and Park Supervisors to assure 
effective programming, maintenance and upkeep of 
Park facilities 
 

Commented [DS28]: Works closely with Parks 
Associate Director and Supervisors with grant funding 
for park projects 
 



Assistant Director, Park & Rec. 3

 Ability to deal effectively with employees, staff, external consultants, the public including 
those members of the public representing different age groups and the media. 

 Ability to supervise, train and evaluate employees. 
 Ability to use electronic information systems to secure more effective and efficient 

operations. 
 Ability to present ideas and programs to individuals or groups. 
 Ability to make clear and concise oral and written reports. 
 
PHYSICAL AND MENTAL EFFORT AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS: 
 
 Works in office setting subject to continuous interruptions and background noise. 
 Includes exposure to video display terminals on a daily basis. 
 Must be able to work under stress from demanding deadlines and changing priorities and 

conditions. 
 Ability to operate equipment requiring eye and hand coordination and mechanical aptitude. 
 
 
JOB QUALIFICATIONS AND LICENSING REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 The skills and knowledge required would generally be acquired with a Bachelor’s Degree in 

Recreation or some closely related field, and 
 four years of progressively responsible experience in municipal or group recreation work, 

including at least two years in a supervisory role.   
 Credentialing as Certified Leisure Professional is preferred. 
 Connecticut Motor Vehicle Operator’s license. 
 
EEO/AA Statement 

 In the Town of East Hartford, we don't just accept difference — we celebrate it, support it, and thrive on it for the benefit 
of our employees, residents, and community partners. The Town of East Hartford is proud to be an equal-opportunity 
workplace. 

 
 
 
 
NOTE:  The above description is illustrative of tasks and responsibilities.  It is not  
             meant to be all-inclusive of every task or responsibility. 
 



  

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

 

DATE:  December 26, 2023 

TO:  Richard F. Kehoe, Chair 

FROM:  Mayor Connor S. Martin 

RE:  APPOINTMENTS: Boards and Commissions 

 

The following names were submitted to serve on the following commissions:  

 
Democratic Appointments: 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

 Wesaneit Tsegai, 19 Home Terrace, East Hartford, 06108 to be moved from an alternate 
position to a full term position  

 
Democratic Reappointments: 

Persons with Disabilities 

 Rena Berube, 124 Tiffany Road, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2025 

 Carlos Martinez Rivera, 190 Burnside Ave, East Hartford, CT 06108, term expire Dec2025 

 Vanessa Jenkins, 26 Suffolk Drive, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2025 

 Veronica Rosario, 31 High St, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2025 

Beautification  

 Dolores Kehoe, 190 Andover, East Hartford, CT 06108, term to expire Dec 2026 

 Patricia Sirois, 45 Jefferson St, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2026 

Commission on Aging  

 Eugenia Perry, 68 Silver Lane, East Hartford, CT 06108, term to expire Dec 2026 

 Gary Kelly, 28 Wentworth, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2026 

Commission on Culture and Fine Arts  

 Aida Ortiz, 80 Hill Top Farm, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2028 



 

Historic District  

 Davis Case, 59 Millwood Road, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2028 

In-Land Wetlands Environment Commission 

 Daniel O’Dea, 137 Madison St, East Hartford, CT 06108, term to expire Dec 2027 

 Richard Rivera, 111 Hills St, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2027 

Planning and Zoning Commission  

 John Ryan, 127 Burke St, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2028 

Public Building Commission 

 John Murphy, 205 Westerly Terrace, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2028 

 Henry Pawlowski, 48 Oxford Drive, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2028 

 Angel Santiago, 700 Forbes St, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2028 

Veterans Commission 

 John Cook, 329 Long Hill St, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2025 

 Paul Barry, 23 Candlewood Dr, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2025 

Zoning Board of Appeals 

 Erwin Hurst, 118 Oxford Dr, East Hartford, CT 06118, term to expire Dec 2028 

 David Repoli, 68 Wood Drive, East Hartford, CT 06108, term to expire Dec 2028 

 Daron Ross, 2 Outlook St, East Hartford, CT 06108, term to expire Dec 2028 

Please place these nominations on the Town Council agenda for the January 2, 2024 meeting. 

      
C: C. Martin, Mayor 

K. Bilodeau, Town Clerk 



  

TOWN OF EAST HARTFORD OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

 

DATE:  December  26, 2023  

TO:  Richard F. Kehoe, Chair 

FROM:  Connor S. Martin, Mayor 

RE:  REFERRAL: Refund of Taxes  

 

I recommend that the Town Council approve a total refund of taxes in the amount of 

$51,719.63 as detailed in the attached listing from our Assistant Collector of Revenue. 

 

Please place on the Town Council Agenda for the January 2, 2024 Town Council meeting.  

 

Thank you. 

C: I. Laurenza, Tax Collector  

M. McCaw, Finance Director 

 

 



 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO: CONNOR S. MARTIN, MAYOR 

 MCCAW MELISSA, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

 

FROM: KRISTY HAFNER, ASSISTANT COLLECTOR OF REVENUE 

  

SUBJECT: REFUND OF TAXES 

DATE:       12/27/2023 

 

Under the provisions of Section 12-129 of the Connecticut General 
Statutes, the following persons are entitled to the refunds as requested.  The 
total amount to be refunded is $51,719.63   Please see attached listing.  Please 
place this item on the Town Council agenda for January 2, 2024. 



Bill Name/ Check payable to: Address City/State/Zip Prop Loc/Vehicle Info. Interest Over Paid

2022-03-0050152 ACAR LEASING LTD PO BOX 1990 FORT WORTH, TX 76101-2098 2020/3GNKBHRS3LS605270 -472.91

2022-03-0050156 ACAR LEASING LTD PO BOX 1990 FORT WORTH, TX 76101-2098 2020/KL7CJLSB6LB024688 -377.1

2022-03-0050157 ACAR LEASING LTD PO BOX 1990 FORT WORTH, TX 76101-2098 2020/3GNKBHRS7LS530248 -675.72

2022-03-0050185 ACAR LEASING LTD PO BOX 1990 FORT WORTH, TX 76101-2098 2019/1G4ZW5SS6KU127229 -155.96

2022-02-0040178 AUTO LOCK UNLIMITED INC PO BOX 427 EAST HAMPTON, MA 01027 123 PARK AVE -409.24

2022-03-0053801 BOATENG RODNEY A 101ST ABN DIV 3RD BCT 21 BEB UNIT 20100 APO, AE 09749-1000 2011/5NPDH4AEXBH039972 -112.57

2022-03-0056095 CCAP AUTO LEASE LTD 1601 ELM ST DALLAS, TX 75201 2020/1C4RJFAG9LC149433 -125.24

2022-03-0056111 CCAP AUTO LEASE LTD 1601 ELM ST DALLAS, TX 75201 2019/1C6SRFHT3KN691151 -189.98

2022-03-0056115 CCAP AUTO LEASE LTD 1601 ELM ST DALLAS, TX 75201 2020/1C4RJFAG9LC242856 -187.46

2022-03-0056126 CCAP AUTO LEASE LTD 1601 ELM ST DALLAS, TX 75201 2021/1C4RJFAGXMC504630 -565.3

2022-03-0056146 CCAP AUTO LEASE LTD 1601 ELM ST DALLAS, TX 75201 2020/1C6SRFFT7LN183365 -796.32

2022-03-0056198 CENTRAL SEALING CO. INC. 69 THOMAS ST EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108-2013 2021/4KNBF2328ML162311 -979.91

2022-03-0056205 CENTRAL SEALING CO. INC. 69 THOMAS ST EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108-2013 2021/1FVMG3DV4MHMR2208 -4,843.69

2022-03-0058674 DAIMLER TRUST 14372 HERITAGE PARKWAY FORT WORTH, TX 76177 2018/4UZABRFD3JCJU1914 -422.94

2021-03-0058736 DAVIS KARSTEN 235 MAIN ST 5H EAST HARTFORD, CT 06118 2002/JTHBF30G720050790 -9.82

2022-03-0059127 DAVIS SCOTT M DAVIS LISA M 14 BAYPATH DR EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108-1412 2011/5NPEB4AC1BH084660 -6.82

2022-03-0062501 FINANCIAL SER VEH TRUST 1400 CITY VIEW DR COLUMBUS, OH 43215 2020/5UXCR6C00LLL82288 -1,033.99

2022-03-0055347 GILL LAURA C 82 WOODYCREST DR EAST HARTFORD, CT 06118-2748 2005/2G2WP522551199502 -72.71

2022-03-0064642 GONZALEZ JESENIA M 233 PEMBROKE ST HARTFORD, CT 06112 2021/1HGCV2F3XMA024884 -57.43

2021-03-0064580 GREENWOOD HERBERT  JR 61 BEDFORD AVE EAST HARTFORD, CT 06118-3101 2014/1HGCR2F33EA195952 -109.17

2022-03-0066526 HESTER PRINCESS B 738 WINDSOR AVE WINDSOR, CT 06095 2014/JN1BV7AR9EM694545 -67.71

2022-03-0066864 HOLLIDAY LILLIE 31 HIGH ST APT 10106 EAST HARTFORD, CT 06118-1878 2012/JN8AS5MV2CW712453 -27.50

2022-03-0067460 HYUNDAI LEASE TITLING TRUST 3161 MICHELSON DR STE 1900 IRVINE, CA 92612 2019/KNDPMCAC4K7602634 -228.36

2022-03-0067464 HYUNDAI LEASE TITLING TRUST 3161 MICHELSON DR STE 1900 IRVINE, CA 92612 2021/5NMS6DAJ8MH330044 -239.32

2022-03-0067465 HYUNDAI LEASE TITLING TRUST 3161 MICHELSON DR STE 1900 IRVINE, CA 92612 2020/KNDPMCAC7L7791149 -197.17

2022-03-0067467 HYUNDAI LEASE TITLING TRUST 3161 MICHELSON DR STE 1900 IRVINE, CA 92612 2020/3KPF24AD8LE205445 -242.64

2022-03-0067480 HYUNDAI LEASE TITLING TRUST 3161 MICHELSON DR STE 1900 IRVINE, CA 92612 2021/KNDPMCAC5M7875343 -660.56



2022-03-0067506 HYUNDAI LEASE TITLING TRUST 3161 MICHELSON DR STE 1900 IRVINE, CA 92612 2020/5XYPHDA5XLG662174 -429.97

2022-03-0067513 HYUNDAI LEASE TITLING TRUST 3161 MICHELSON DR STE 1900 IRVINE, CA 92612 2020/3KPF24ADXLE226975 -242.64

2022-03-0067519 HYUNDAI LEASE TITLING TRUST 3161 MICHELSON DR STE 1900 IRVINE, CA 92612 2020/3KPF24AD6LE210255 -81.06

2022-03-0067604 HYUNDAI LEASE TITLING TRUST 3161 MICHELSON DR STE 1900 IRVINE, CA 92612 2020/5XXGT4L32LG415973 -306.00

2022-03-0068161 JENNINGS JANNETT M 54 CARROLL RD EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108-3045 2000/YS3DD58H9Y2004554 -16.23

2022-03-0068366 JOHNSON KENNETH L 26 MITCHELL CT EAST HARTFORD, CT 06118-2227 2019/1C4PJMLB2KD483910 -93.20

2022-03-0068686 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA PO BOX 901098 FORT WORTH, TX 76101-2098 2020/4S3GTAJ6XL1718006 -149.8

2022-03-0068687 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA PO BOX 901098 FORT WORTH, TX 76101-2098 2020/JF2SKAGC3LH513405 -167.34

2022-03-0068702 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA PO BOX 901098 FORT WORTH, TX 76101-2098 2019/4S3GTAJ64K3738948 -363.1

2022-03-0068704 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA 700 KANSAS LN LA4 4041 MONROE, LA 71203 2019/JF2GTAAC8KH373670 -270.39

2022-03-0068710 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA PO BOX 901098 FORT WORTH, TX 76101-2098 2019/JM1BPBJM9K1146363 -88.70

2022-03-0069194 KEYBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 17 CORPORATE WOODS BLVD ALBANY, NY 12211 2018/4S8SZ1611JW031609 -6.30

2022-03-0069318 KING PIERSON O 2670 WINDSOR KNOLL DR DACULA, GA 30019 2007/5FNRL38267B003891 -67.55

2022-03-0058672 MERCEDS-BENZ FINANCIAL SERV 14372 HERITAGE PARKWAY FORT WORTH, TX 76177 2020/WDDWK8GBXLF940582 -277.66

2022-03-0058695 MERCEDS-BENZ FINANCIAL SERV 14372 HERITAGE PARKWAY FORT WORTH, TX 76177 2019/WDC0G4KB1K1005636 -203.52

2022-03-0058696 MERCEDS-BENZ FINANCIAL SERV 14372 HERITAGE PARKWAY FORT WORTH, TX 76177 2019/WDDZH6JB8KA579051 -814.28

2022-03-0058698 MERCEDS-BENZ FINANCIAL SERV 14372 HERITAGE PARKWAY FORT WORTH, TX 76177 2019/4JGED6EB1KA153583 -1,367.22

2022-03-0058702 MERCEDS-BENZ FINANCIAL SERV 14372 HERITAGE PARKWAY FORT WORTH, TX 76177 2020/W1NTG4GB4LU040515 -260.08

2022-03-0058713 MERCEDS-BENZ FINANCIAL SERV 14372 HERITAGE PARKWAY FORT WORTH, TX 76177 2021/W1K3G5BB9MJ265574 -460.08

2022-03-0058718 MERCEDS-BENZ FINANCIAL SERV 14372 HERITAGE PARKWAY FORT WORTH, TX 76177 2020/W1KZF8EB1LA831896 -271.86

2022-03-0073628 MEYER RACHEL C 3423 ROXBURY DR TROY, MI 48084 2012/JF1GPAR63CH204679 -131.92

2021-03-0072950 MILLER ROBERT 340 FOREST ST EAST HARTFORD, CT 06118 2002/4F4YR12U52TM05990 -6.10

2019-03-0074763 MORENO EDWARD 80 GARDEN ST APT B EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108-1742 2004/YV1CM91H741060619 -112.50

2020-03-0073548 MORENO EDWARD 80 GARDEN ST APT B EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108-1742 2004/YV1CM91H741060619 -3.19 -106.20

2020-04-0086138 MORENO EDWARD 80 GARDEN ST APT B EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108-1742 2011/1FMHK8D85BGA16762 -63.45

2021-03-0073543 MORENO EDWARD 80 GARDEN ST APT B EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108-1742 2011/1FMHK8D85BGA16762 -278.51

2022-01-0005434 MY PROPERTY HOLDINGS LLC 601 OAKMONT LN #400 WESTMONT, IL 60559 630 TOLLAND ST -5,360.68

2022-03-0075627 NISSAN INFINITI LT LLC TAX OPERATIONSPO BOX 650214 DALLAS, TX 75265-0214 2019/5N1DR2MMXKC645882 -445.26

2022-03-0075632 NISSAN INFINITI LT LLC TAX OPERATIONSPO BOX 650214 DALLAS, TX 75265-0214 2020/5N1AZ2BSXLN111193 -479.84

2022-03-0075717 NISSAN INFINITI LT LLC TAX OPERATIONSPO BOX 650214 DALLAS, TX 75265-0214 2020/1N4AA6DV9LC383178 -167.56

2022-03-0075777 NISSAN INFINITI LT LLC TAX OPERATIONSPO BOX 650214 DALLAS, TX 75265-0214 2020/JN8AT2MV2LW133989 -95.14



2021-03-0076002 PAGAN ROSELYN 6 HIGH PATH RD WINDSOR, CT 06095 2015/5N1AT2MV9FC770908 -355.11

2019-03-0080991 RODAS MODESTO E 129 RISLEY ST EAST HARTFORD, CT 06118-1533 2011/JHLRE4H52BC014955 -82.44

2018-04-0087338 RODRIGUEZ JOCELYN 617 MAIN ST MIDDLETOWN, CT 06457 2003/JNRBS08W63X404685 -84.24 -216.00

2019-03-0081219 RODRIGUEZ JOCELYN 617 MAIN ST MIDDLETOWN, CT 06457 2003/JNRBS08W63X404685 -52.52 -175.05

2022-03-0063148 SASKO WILLIAM 281 CHESTER ST EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108 2005/3N1CB51AX5L502104 -8.75

2021-02-0040692 SKYLINE RECOVERY SERVICE 392 TOLLAND ST EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108 392 TOLLAND ST -259.94

2022-02-0040680 SKYLINE RECOVERY SERVICE 392 TOLLAND ST EAST HARTFORD, CT 06108 392 TOLLAND ST -206.32

2022-03-0084137 SOTO-TROCHE OTONIEL 9 COMANCHE RD EAST HARTFORD, CT 06118-2523 2016/KM8SNDHF1GU147940 -43.72

2021-03-0084607 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2019/5TDJZRFH8KS714244 -151.04

2021-03-0084631 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2019/JTJBARBZ7K2194987 -479.54

2021-03-0084742 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2019/4T1B11HK0KU838960 -140.44

2022-03-0085809 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2020/JTHD81F25L5041478 -72.68

2022-03-0085813 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2021/JTDEPMAE4MJ175371 -337.42

2022-03-0085818 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2020/2T3A1RFV9LW105306 -205.64

2022-03-0085842 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2020/4T1G11BK8LU007609 -161.08

2022-03-0085843 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2020/5YFS4RCE8LP048803 -141.2

2022-03-0085860 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2019/5TDDZRFH9KS930908 -800.7

2022-03-0085862 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2021/2T3A1RFV8MC199195 -216.98

2022-03-0085866 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2019/4T1B11HKXKU695192 -365.24

2022-03-0085867 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2020/NMTKHMBX3LR111466 -512.95

2022-03-0085868 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2019/2T2BZMCA4KC189380 -879.90

2022-03-0085870 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2019/JTJDZKCA9K2015723 -336.16

2022-03-0085874 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2019/4T1B11HK7KU769541 -410.68

2022-03-0085876 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2019/58ABZ1B10KU046101 -213.98

2022-03-0085893 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2020/JM1DKFB78L1466833 -89.80

2022-03-0085903 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2020/4T1G11BK7LU017323 -107.60

2022-03-0085908 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2021/JM1BPBBL2M1318760 -149.22

2022-03-0085946 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2020/3MVDMBCL0LM126561 -143.54

2022-03-0085968 TOYOTA LEASE TRUST 20 COMMERCE WAY SUITE 800 WOBURN, MA 01801-1057 2020/2T3A1RFV0LW110782 -343.00

2022-03-0087068 VCFS AUTO LEASING CO 1800 VOLVO PL MAHWAH, NJ 07430-2032 2021/YV4A22PK1M1713049 -294.00

2022-03-0087693 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WAUABAF4XNN006698 -740.07

2022-03-0087695 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WA1GAAFY4N2033507 -834.71

2022-03-0087696 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WA1EECF35N1088873 -899.05



2022-03-0087697 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WA1DECF32N1085411 -850.94

2022-03-0087698 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WAUEAAF45NA022027 -859.31

2022-03-0087699 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WAUABAF45NN001652 -740.07

2022-03-0087700 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WAUABAF49NA016341 -740.07

2022-03-0087701 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WAUAUDGYXNA064105 -577.69

2022-03-0087702 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WA1GAAFY4N2072744 -751.51

2022-03-0087703 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WAUEAAF44NN007835 -773.69

2022-03-0087704 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WAUDACF54NA029339 -758.34

2022-03-0087705 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WAUBBAF42NA034846 -746.41

2022-03-0087706 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WA14AAFY1N2082943 -824.8

2022-03-0087707 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WA1EAAFY1N2089637 -836.73

2022-03-0087708 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WA1GAAFY0N2089217 -751.51

2022-03-0087709 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WA114AFY6N2082091 -976.47

2022-03-0087710 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WA1EAAFY3N2081006 -836.73

2022-03-0087711 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WAUBBAF49NN009872 -746.41

2022-03-0087713 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WA1EECF37N1132100 -809.46

2022-03-0087720 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WA1EEDF38N1130510 -539.64

2021-04-0087265 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2022/WA1EECF32N1018781 -91.83

2022-03-0087730 VW CREDIT 1401 FRANKLIN BLVD LIBERTYVILLE, IL 60048 2019/WAUB4AF46KA101650 -745.94

2022-03-0088173 WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FIN INC 800 WALNUT STREET DES MOINES, IA 50309 2018/4S8SZ1614JW031975 -381.78

2022-03-0088382 WICKHAM EDWARD J 150 WAKEFIELD CIR EAST HARTFORD, CT 06118 2003/1HD1BXB133Y025153 -408.07

2022-03-0089151 YAWGEL STEPHEN J 105 DAVIS RD EAST HARTFORD, CT 06118-3013 2019/1GC1KTEY3KF194408 -6.65

SUBTOTAL     (139.95)   (51,579.68)   

TOTAL #########


	01-02-24 Agenda Final.pdf
	5A 12-12-23 Exec Mins.pdf
	CALL TO ORDER
	ADJOURNMENT

	5B 12-12-23 Minutes Final.pdf
	5C 12-19-23_special_mins_final.pdf
	CALL TO ORDER
	ADJOURNMENT

	6B 2023-12-27_Resignation_BCs.pdf
	8A1 2023 12-27_Resolution_SummerEnrichmentGrant.pdf
	8A1A HFPG Summer Enrichment Grant.pdf
	refer to council HFPG Summer Program grant November 2023 (002).pdf
	Council Grants Form Summer Programming Grant 2024 (002).pdf
	2024-01-02 Council Resolution Library HFPG Summer Program grant December 2023 (002).pdf
	R E S O L U T I O N


	8A2 Early Voting Implementation Grant.pdf
	EV Grant letter TC.pdf
	2023-12-21 15_23_03.pdf
	8A2 Early Voting Implementation Grant.pdf
	refer to council early voting Dec 2023.pdf
	Council Grants Form Early Voting.pdf
	Governor Lamont Signs Legislation Establishing Early Voting in Connecticut Elections and Primaries.pdf
	Council Resolution Early Voting Jan 2024.pdf
	R E S O L U T I O N



	8B READ Items.pdf
	12-12-23 READ Mins Final.pdf
	DECEMBER 12, 2023
	NOMINATION OF OFFICERS
	ADOPTION OF RULES GOVERNING MEETINGS
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	OPPORTUNITY FOR RESIDENTS TO SPEAK
	ADJOURNMENT

	8A READ Brookside Adjacent Parcel.pdf
	8B READ East River Parcels.pdf

	8C Budget Schedule 2024.pdf
	8D fund balance reserve fund ordinance amendment 12202023 (1).pdf
	8E PP Recommendations.pdf
	2023-12-8_Referral_PersonnelCommittee.pdf
	8H PP Referral Accountant Asst.pdf
	2023-12-4_Referral_PersonnelCommittee (002).pdf
	8H PP Referral Accountant Asst.pdf
	GENERAL DESCRIPTION

	Accountant.pdf

	Memo12-8-2023 Payroll Coordinator Finance.pdf
	JD_PAYROLL Administrator revised 11.29.23-1.pdf

	8F Memo 2023_12_26_JobDescriptions.pdf
	8F1 Fire Dept Admin Secretary II.pdf
	Memo 12-11-2023 Fire Marshal Administrative Operations Coordinator.pdf
	job1.pdf

	8F2 Admin Secretary III PW.pdf
	Memo12-11-2023 Sec III- PW.pdf
	job2.pdf

	8F3 Asst Director Parks and Rec.pdf
	Memo 12-11-2023 Assistant Director of Parks and Recreation.pdf
	8F3.pdf

	8G 2023-12-26_Memo_Appointments_BC.pdf
	8H 2023-12-26_Memo_Referral_Refund of Taxes.pdf
	8H Refund of Taxes.pdf
	Refund Cover Let Mayor Jan 2 2024 meeting.pdf
	Jan2-2024Refunds.pdf
	Dec 20 2023 Refunds



